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Net Worth

as.a_“.ﬁla.l. «ufma_on. m Enﬁ. W“ PPP (PUBLIC PARIVATE PARTNERSHIP)
( E-I@ a.% INITIATIVES The Bank’s Net Worth per

OUR PARTNERSHIP "FROM PROJECT TO RELATED POLICY"  Soanaea
- NPR 108.03

in the FY 2021-22.

GENERATION

PROJECT
NTETIES s A L eosossomiuiiisomiiiiooiiciiioiionioi
ENERGY
SECTORAL INVESTMENT Earning Per Share
i i e
11.5% 46% DISTRIBUTION
32.89.... BEE e NPR 4.95

in the FY 2021-22.

CREDIT APPROVALS 4
4%

INDUSTRY

URBAN

&
SOCIAL
Return on Assets

26 TOTAL PROJECTS

The Bank’s RoA stands at

4.07%

ASSET

MONETIZATION INDUSTRIAL

PARK

O,
D UNDER-CONSTRUCTION 27% 11.5% e ey 200122
PROJECTS IN 5 SECETORS ICT Jo z :
z O o<
=2 INDUSTRIAL [ 5
PRI i
OPERATIONAL PROJECTS ST &>
IN 3 SECTORS 2o oo
PROVINCIAL DISTRIBUTION Z0 == Return on Equity
n
SPECIAL The Bank’s RoE stands at
ECONOMIC ZONE o
Sector Number 4_47 /O
Hydropower Projects 12 : in the FY 2021-22.
Tourism Projects 7 s
urism Proj PROGRESSING PROJECTS s
Hospitals 3 :
Panchkhal Liveable Green City Project q
ISP/Data Center 3 l. y Frol Profit After TAX
] o = UNCDF and UNHABITAT have been supporting for Feasibility Study
Cement Clinkerization 1 The Bank’s PAT stands at
Total 26 #BAGMAT| = GANDAKI ®LUMBINI =PROVINCE 1 WSUDURPASHCHIM n Development of Simara SEZ Block B and C N P R 1 . 02 Billion
. o L ; in the FY 2021-22.
m PWC India has been engaged to conduct Financial Feasibility in the
THE JOURNEY in support of FCDO
FY 2075/76 FY 2077/78
Initiative taken to establish Licensing and Commercial Issue of NPR 8 Billion POLICY
Infrastructure Development Bank Operation of NIFRA Initial Public Offering (IPO) INITIATIVES
POLICY SOUNDING POLICY DRAFTING POLICY ADVOCACY
To bridge the gaps To on-board the global To create favourable policy
1 2 3 J—f 4 p———'g 5 J— | 6 J e in  existing  INFRA best practices in  INFRA making environment
related legal / policy developments, NIFRA has been and common voice on
frameworks, NIFRA collaborating in drafting of desired  policies, NIFRA
has been partnering in sectoral investment themes and has been liaisoning with
all policy deliberations concept papers on structuring all  stakeholders, Public
as guided by Strategic of Funds, InvITs, Green Bond Institutions, Private Sectors,
FY 2076/77 FY 2078/79 Pillar ‘Policy Dialogue’. and INFRA Bond to channelize Development Partners, IFls
Registration of NIFRA Institutional Strengthening Business Growth the long-term low-cost stable and Growth Partners.
institutional funds.
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Vision Mission

AT faeRTeshT @i Teen! Areet faxfr deem &g | W JSTeTEhT ST o9 7fd 98 T |

To be the nodal financial institution of the nation for
infrastructure development.

dct dlediex
CORE VALUES

WEFRW e P Te
fssTept ardraRer fasHr T |

wiasr I @
WWWQEWW
AT AE®ds W T freg =9
Wmmwn—rrmn

AT TS T T qY

B TIERTERT TRITEHT @18 ISR T STTavaeh faier a8 g=ams |

| To accelerate investment in infrastructure.
m To bridge the financial gap for unlocking development
potential.

NATION FIRST
We commit to place the interest of our
nation above everything else.

INTEGRITY

We create an environment of high trust
and integrity among our stakeholders
through our strong moral principles.

FUTURE ORIENTED

We aspire to create World class
infrastructure to meet the needs of
today’s and future generations of Nepal.

READINESS TO SERVE

We are always prepared to timely serve
the community for better tomorrow
starting today.

ACCOUNTABLE
We are compliant and responsible in all
our actions.

AT TFRTETHAT o [ATHIIHT TUTERT HEMHTIERATE
et arfiiF araTRuT aTERT a=a

ft SrETfm AUTEH ATANTEEE,

9 kel fafd R00: AT FIfded ¥ (TEIAR R TFIE 03R) TTd Tl ToaTesh AHfaehl 22w St
ToTeTgEmR sfoRent <felr afier arermor T fore fafa, T T e fe famrreeT Sershet qu ol T S Ukt

3T TFUT ST HRTTaeee SRR Tay uteifaehl ST aTfdeh ST e |

q. &wr g fafa, awa T em

fafd : R00: AT WA 20 T, AR (TEIIR & ATHFR R03R)
T : ITIT {IAVE UIE STgaae, aradyaet!, HISHTS! |

T 3% &1 9 : I8 2:00 a7 |

Jutearta gheeht faeM ¢:oo ot 3fa ¥ Geat TieA B |

TARA aAr ot afn faifa faumes:

() AT e

9. SATRIH T R0/ - I Tt AiFfdent HidaeT ATTY Setther T AT T |

R. TETIEIsheh! Ufdaa dfed o) HTHE HHT-deh! AT, faeqd AhHeeH fedte, e yare faewor, dsfiur
UhT TG TR qqaar-e STTgees "I Sethel T E&fehd T |

3. FHIOHT UF Ro%3 1 THT 222 T ook a7 Taxiiar ST @Famell UT 003 &l THT 3 ITJAR Sohohl TETILET
qrefaehT FATRTTCT SIS ST Y R019% / <o T ATHT ATET TTETAIEThah! TR T T fsteht qTiesrtaer dre |
(FFOT UT R0€3 BT T 222(2) T qur foxdia Heum gt UT 093 &1 T <3 () THINH SETET
sr@Taderss ot M.G.S. & Associates, Chartered Accountants : 13 g1 I g8 )

¥, HaTetsh Giffdel TEaTe T SHITSH Il ISft &.32,%0,00,00,000|- (TFHEH 3T HIST HIS FIAT ATH)
¥.R204% (TN FIHAT g5 U I UId UTa9Td) o g ThH &.20,%%,%¢,000]|- (Toel IS AN ATE STSHEN
ESI AT 0T ) TS AT (S 6T g ferawor 7 fiepfa vem m |

@) faiw ge="

2. Sehehl FerTst T TR AT GHETHIIe SIe/ 99 7 |

R. Y- T FRmTEei T Seie wiehiaer HHuT it fRreEeTe i hiaad/ JaHe/ §ne / aiwTsi T
T THATST a7 |7 Fa-emT 317 QI a1 gvhra HTed WUAT |ial SRS T dodieish aiffaens Ul sTeqart
ERIRISERIEE

m fafae

AT gfafas e
FOAT gfaa
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HILTROT AT TFarell AT AR

9) Sehehl TTT ATEROT T T TG ATIH TATSTHehT AATHT sishehl SIETEHT &at feharel fafd 092 /0c /02 Td Wk faa
T S | T Fat Tohame a8 HUh! ffd R0 /oc/ 02 AT STfHedl foTae JuTel ook U=t fef. e
FRER T I Sehehl I WAL TeAleel TS et fafqes, TedTer, HISHISIAT U IR ATHHTah!
feTrdent ST sfohehT ST &dt fohdTemT I IRREHTES AT TTHT WIT fele, Hae™ 7 L e ATvie ured
T "o SRR I FIATGRT STHHRT TSR S |

R) AT ETIROT AT AT T Sogeh AT HRTgHTae®eR! GiaeTent ATHT STToRT fohaTer T Yegd Wt ¢ =UeT
3T fE gaT &S |

3) aTfiier ATURET AUTHT T To 3o QAT HeTgvTaetel Sehel STRT Th! JIRT-051 Hfed I WHIOTTS a1
ferame @raTeRT faemoT T ST UfE—T Gorl THIT STHaT 9T |TemT fes 3118y g7 STig & |

%) BT 9T e, Shel T T T THeh! ThT Ffat-fer (Srereft) T 7 =mer Srrerier | et faeT ar
g% g 9T ¥¢ gueT ST Uiiaiys aq dhent TAeE HRIeT HISHVET 2o, IHTYTT TS HAJIAS | JET
fafafer f1gew Tiue =t Sl SRR g7 AW & |

) ST e T HRy ST AT eBTS Gae HiaTT Sat T SR i o STRAT G EAT T
3[& TV ¥ ¢ TUT ST I Sohehl ATLE HHRTAT HISHVST 20, ATITIET TS TS |

%) T AT U W7 Tt RIS Uiatier Teh TehT 0 W J6T TNehT STETHT STeeh T T i o=
= GRS g9 |

o) wfatfer f1ge T SRREteT o HRvTERT @ar afafafy Se T STTh TUTHT SUTRIT W ST Wi T, Sha
T T HAGTT =ITeHT ATeh! fetfard ST ST 316 g7 9T ¥ < HUeT 3TN I Seheh] T2 e HISHUE!-20,
ITYSET TS TS |

<) SRREEEeT AT a7 fatie HTha STHT T feiF, Sehat T T HaaM T Hajg e | TTeTeeh SRR T
TTeTeheh! HTETeh o Tastel SAfeqarit yTed idiafer amT 9T foe, Sehal 1M T HagH ™ HJaa | I
e{TE%ehT Gl TShaTeIT TTETshehl EYHT AT ANGUhT SATHATS AT HIEh AT |

%) HYTH TUHT Ueh ST S&l SAchehl THAT IR TquehiAT ol ATbeREegRT BId TRUST dTvbaiel ar
frTeeer BTG Rt gfaffuer T AT SIS - ATYhaR AT g TEchehIHT SREHTEEaR! gal fhareT STeh!
T UfeeT Scoid HUh! § Tifg sATthel fauahT wa a1 Hfatiaus o7 get §7s |

g0) TvTeRT fa TvT 31% g et dfeet & Sufeerd wefage arfde s & |

A

2. shchl AT UfdaeT SHISHIUST 2o, TR Teud Sehent ITRE FHRTAT aT sehehl I AR TeAleleT ATFTHS
FTdied fAfaes, TrTe, HISHTEISTE YT 7T Harg-e | HTe ATRUTENT H1T Feafeerd aiieh faae T Seithersht
fawree o SRRl JaETEE www.hifrabank.com TT Ut TRETERT §aT @IEfeTe T8 & Al STRNT SRR
TSR |

R, I AHFRIRT AT Sehehl TS HRTAT, HISATVE! 2o, TV Ted FHEuT Gferaent HEied (Sfawi .
02-¥16R %]/ ¥9R0R03 Ext. Q4R AT TFYh T THT U TS |

Y

quTA SERECFAY EED ﬂ"[., WT@'-% I
Loy, A U Loode

2. TFTYHIEhRT AT

R. STHT:

3. SRRt ufer/ feaumd @ .-

% . ST qTOT .

«. feushr SRR He:

TS SIRTEH sioh et 3Rl Tfd RowR /oc/ 2o | G AT TR TTEROT THTHT SURef g7 STRT THURT FoleT I |
FEES : FVTHaTT HoIST T AT HaIST U5 HATa 9T Tag ST g7 TN & | ST-TT ATehaTHT FoisT 7 ITe & |

oft Hererer afafa
TS TBTEEFER sfah fel.
FHTISHTE!-20 THTT

fae: afafafy frges mr a )

........................ I oo T /AT, ST e ST A/
................................. o Y HPUHIhT IRREHTRT Sfeader fafd Rows @Tet HiET 2o T STHeRERT faT g4
=t aTfieh |TIROT | |/ BT WY Uik UE Seher auT fuRmT aevmlt g1 TEe UhT 3t g

TR/ ETHT AHSATE T T T HAGT THRT @ATHT ... e J.9T. /.91, ST .
........... FET AT oo e e e TS BT/ ETET TR T3IH T UaTURRT G/ TTTERT & |
PIESIREE S PIESIREE ST
EEATEICRT TAT TG
T T
SreReHT afier TR/ ferme @rar = SEReHT ufer TR/ ferme @rar .

TR TEAT

Hfa:
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FISUTEY 20, T

AR . 02- ¥ ¥/ %003
@H: info@nifrabank.com

ay H1gd: https://www.nifrabank.com/

WE AND OUR ROLE

(mnzmﬁaﬁm

uradg

goges T fmior g7 qatameRT aiesHeeT faxdr
UG BT SHIST Uk el ST &9HT
wnfad g4 GEHIRT T R0k BT R AN
HATATHT HATURT TH AUTA  SThICal Sehel =it
TTRIART TISHTEEdT aHT faear 74 gejehehl
e T TS TR AT Heed  TEehT
et &/ famw sfder & fasma eTRIGeRT
TRETSHTEEHT ST &rseRT TRTHT TEwTiTaT J9d gRT
TRESTTehT Ul T ST T Fhiiee |k ST
I TSR B |

3T qIohehT JATER faehm Siohaeehl i Tahid T
TRTHT STTRUITEEATS STEAT &1 A Yepiden! sihel
HaeT qaTaR ATk a9 3TTfefen fashramr armer
YaTIeRT qiESHIeEaTs TTfaeshar T TR @Y
Ferad Ml fes | a9 dwer Ul o g%
STRTHEERTS TN TIFT (Strategic Pillars) 3T S9HT
g o ¥ e oM aoiHT TR At 31geushT
Ffee SIS TS 3 |

T SFehoh! GEITYRAT U T Gfed ATy Jehes,
affuT sFroies, a1 ufafed sraT e syawries et
£ TG Sl AT bl WHITdH Tedee SAMmad
FIT TS T HEST g STUEITRT 8T sk eiehiiehT
FH AT TR TehfaehT dEshrier dit qaremeht
gfreTeET ufEre T favueedr @l &
FaETIe Tafafies dere TR S |
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Who we are

After coming into operations on 6" March 2019 with the vision
of becoming a ‘Nodal Institution’ for expanding the financial
access to the infrastructure projects being constructed in the
nation, Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited has since actively
engaged in identification and evaluation of infrastructure
projects, also encouraging private sector participation in them,
such as large hydroelectricity projects that are significant
for financial and social transformation, transmission lines,
urban infrastructure, industrial parks/special economic zones
(SEZs), besides gradually growing loan portfolio in projects
promoted by private sector in electricity, tourism, health and
information-communication technology.

When we look at the operating modalities and investment
priorities of infrastructure development banks of other
countries, we observe that banks of this nature finance
those infrastructure projects which contribute to the overall
economic development of their respective country through
strong infrastructure ecosystem. The Bank has developed 4
year strategic plan including strategic pillars considering best
practices of infrastructure development.

With Nepal Government together with commercial banks,
insurance companies and other reputed companies and
business personalities as its promoters, Nepal Infrastructure
Bank Limited is well positioned to meet its strategic goals.
As such, with a long term view, the Bank is operating its
activities centered around core areas of building institutional
capacity, managing risks and investing long term low cost
funds into infrastructure projects.

y

Projects

Performance

Policy

RESULT FRAMEWORK OF NIFRA
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BIG IN
MANDATE,
SIZE AND
IMPACT

To assist the goal of the Nepal
Government to enhance prosperity
through infrastructure development,
we aspire to be Big in Mandate
and Financing Size in all strategic
infrastructures. We strive to play
a catalyst role in fulfiling country
‘INFRA Financing Gap’ by means of:

m Acting as Nodal Financial Institution
for Infrastructure development

®m Mobilizing the investment and
growth capital

®m Expanding our networks/affiliations
among INFRA Stakeholders

PORTFOLIO
AND REGIONAL
DIVERSIFICATION

The Bank’s credit portfolio and
investment sectors in project pipeline
ensure the investments will be
diversified in terms of:

m Geography

m Sectors

m Projects

m Development Route (PPP/PSP)

TAPPING
LOCAL/GLOBAL
RESOURCES

To mobilize the ‘Stable Long-term Low-
Cost’ Fund into infrastructure projects,
we have been continuously working on
structuring innovative sourcing products
including:

m Green Bonds

= INFRA Bonds

m Infrastructure Investment Trust (InvITs)
m INFRA Fund & Project Incubation Fund

HYDRO
PLUS
FINANCING

The infrastructure development banks
globally set their priorities in line with
National Infrastructure Plan. We
understand the energy infrastructure
(Hydropower electricity generation,
transmission, distribution and trade)
is in forefront of Nepal’s Infrastructure
Roadmap. NIFRA has accordingly
developed/adopted the ‘Hydro Plus
Financing’ Strategy to build the Bank’s
portfolio including following sectors in
addition to Hydro:

m Industrial & Economic INFRA
m Transportation INFRA

m Tourism INFRA

m Telecom and IT

m Fintech

m Aviation

m Social INFRA

m Urban INFRA

m Water and Sanitation INFRA

NIFRA

WAY

CREDIT
ENHANCEMENT

Credit Enhancement Products (CEPs)
have been proven very instrumental
for developing larger infrastructures as
they mitigate/share the project related
risks. To accelerate the project pipeline
development, we integrate following
products/facilities ~ to  strengthen
the infrastructure financing model/
practices at Bank:

m Refinancing the Operating INFRA

u On-lending

m Co-lending with International
Financial Institutions

m Providing Hybrid/Convertible Capital

m Providing Financial Guarantees

m Extending Lenders' Engineering/
Transaction Advisory Services

COLLABORATION
AND MULTI-
STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

We have been expanding our reach
to all the three levels of Nepal
Government, Public Institutions,
Private Sectors, Bi-lateral/Multi-lateral/
Development Financial Institutions
and Growth Partners for effectively
fulfilling the sole purpose of prosperity
through infrastructure development.
We collaborate for:

m Project Ideating and Identifications
m Conducting Project Related Studies
m Market Sounding and Roadshows
m Policy Advocacy

@
@)

|
|
I
|
I
|
|
I
|
I
|
|
I
|
I
|
|
I
|
@

NIFRA FOR
INNOVATIVE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LEFT TO RIGHT (SITTING)

MR. ANUJ AGARWAL, CHAIRMAN
MS. LIMAADHIKARIACHARYA, DIRECTOR

LEFT TO RIGHT (STANDING)

MR. LALMANI JOSHI, D/IRECTOR

MR. SHANKAR PRASAD ADHIKARI, DIRECTOR
MR. CHANDRA PRASAD DHAKAL, DIRECTOR
MR. SUMAN POKHAREL, D/IRECTOR

MR. KEDAR NATH SHARMA, DIRECTOR
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DIRECTORS' PROFILES

-

Mr. ANUJ AGARWAL
CHAIRMAN (MBA)

e off oS ey fawmer gw fa. &r
wfafifac 18 Serenl deTed AfafaaT &g HUER
T | I\ AUTHET ST TeeaT TueRT Tiasfier
g T ufifed goge | SwETeSId
AT FFETad  Sfiaen g fafe=T  &rsenr
JTHEE S gatuR, I@e 3e, fwem few
TRTIRICRT ST U hro e TTIHT T HiehT TeTer-aT
qisha VfHhT Tog HUGhT & | JdTereh! dTTNSI e
TR TRTTETERTq ST TSRy 4T STaTerset
T 9 F™ T WUHT B | 3@ A e
afeEer (CNI) T qd 3uTerer et a1 EO,YPO
ST wfafed HeTeten! Hus 98 gHd T8
AR T | IeTd a9 fosiehl &1 AUTA T,
Tz ARy weT, fguefir T o1 thashaenT el o5
FI T Herg U & | off SETersger Vanderbilt
University ST & 2:%% AT MBA feift arfaer 1
TR B |

Mr. Anuj Agarwal represents in the Bank's Board
from Vishal Group Ltd. (Promoter Shareholder). He
is one of Nepal’s most dynamic entrepreneurs and
thought leaders. As a serial entrepreneur he has
helped found companies across various domains
including Infrastructure, Industry, Power, Education
and Retail. Highly passionate about the socio-
economic potential of Nepal, Mr. Agarwal has spent
decades working across various institutions in
various capacities, including former Vice President of
CNI, Founder Member of EO, YPO, and been invited
as an expert consultant across various Government,
NGO, Bilateral and other frameworks. Mr. Agarwal
graduated in 1996 with an MBA from Vanderbilt

University.

wATEs o HERATT MY AU HEK,
afafaT g WU B | 38T weEied g T
e 3T T A=l URTTE HeTSTRATehT
TRIITRET YYGh! §99T AT §Ig-S | 3aT &1
JTeT TehienT temafa darent fafe=r uemr
@ & TWen! AT B | Fomta Saehr
fafwer vemT e Aqeert yfrer fafe
T JeTet Fonga favafaenmeraene g
TSHIfa ST ST WU & | 3et
MR. KEDAR NATH T UG, AT T AT grafeer
lpiviudety Tty ferermm it s@@ 5 |

DIRECTOR (MA, LLM)

Mr. Kedar Nath Sharma represents in the Bank's Board from Ministry of
Finance - MoF (Promoter Shareholder). He is Joint Secretary of MoF,
Government of Nepal (GoN). He is presently heading Administration
Division of the Ministry as a Division Head. Mr. Sharma holds a Master's
degree in Political Science as well as Master's degree in Law from
Tribhuwan University.

HaTeTe it 9% THTE EohTersy STSTHS fe. T
gfafafcs nd et deTers afafaar &g
UHT | IET TUTThT SR T T
ST 3778, TH. §. I (IME Group) T 3Te&
5359 | 3T AuTCTh! HfdfSd Sra@mRieR qar
§Eo | 3. WA, §. g7 feowiwa: ey,
TATYT, SHeeTeh i THTIRIEhT SASTETIEEHT Her
T | 38 B A HZUAS Aok T, .
. . g9 quT FART feew far. @1 srerer
PRASAD DHAKAL G @2 JoTeT JelT aforess st afes

DIRECTOR (B.COM) JUTEHET T TUTAT 3G [ 1GTehT ATHT SUTetehl
HRTATUTSIgqeh! F9HT 9T R §de-® | 381t fa. . (B.Com)
TrAeR! 3o fRTelT STiee TS U B |

Mr. Chandra Prasad Dhakal represents in the Bank's Board from IME
Ltd (Promoter Shareholder). Mr. Dhakal is Chairman of “IME Group”
Nepal. He is a successful businessman of the country and represents
several organisations in different capacities. IME Group is renowned
business house particularly known for Remittance, Banking, Insurance,
Hospitality, Hydropower, Automobiles, Infrastructure, Cable Car etc. in
Nepal. Presently, he is the Chairman of Global IME Bank Ltd., IME Group
and Chandragiri Hills Ltd. He is also Senior Vice President of Federation
of Nepalese Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FNCCI) as well as
Honorary Consul of the Republic of Indonesia for Nepal. Mr. Dhakal holds
Bachelor's degree in Commerce.

MR. LALMANI JOSHI
DIRECTOR (MBA)

MR. SHANKAR
PRASAD ADHIKARI
DIRECTOR (MBA)

MR. SUMAN POKHAREL
DIRECTOR (MBS)

MS. LIMA ADHIKARI
ACHARYA
DIRECTOR (MBA)

NIFRA ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 | 17

HeTereh #ff Areravit Sefisy gafsterT JuTer for. 1 wfdafafuea 78 SeheRT weTerh WATGHT &g qUHT B | 38T
U TR I i UEETe HaT T FHER! §Ig-S | 3erhT ST HaTT 3% 9 3T Seih! AgHT
WH B | I & AT AU . T T ggros | Tarramr 3ef femmersw o far., afaat o fa. T
Tt SfriieR faehTer fTHehT et WS ah1el TTER] WUehT | 38Tel Uh. far. T (MBA) TFrehT 3= fararm
gTet T YU B |

Mr. Lalmani Joshi represents in the Bank's Board from Emerging Nepal Ltd (Promoter Shareholder). He is
retired Secretary of Government of Nepal (GoN). During his service period of more than thirty-five years with
GoN, Mr. Joshi had served the government in different capacities. Presently, he is a Chairman of Emerging
Nepal Ltd. In the past, Mr. Joshi had served in the Board of Himalayan Bank Limited, NABIL Bank Ltd. and Nepal

Industrial Development Corporation as a Director. Mr. Joshi holds Master's degree in Business Administration.

Herereh #ff SR TETE SIS Tad=T TeTeTsheh] EIHT Sheh! HaTersh rHfaHT T8 U & | 3af Hure
TR T Hied TesTe FaT Fad FEaRT §Ig= | ot A9 30 9 et SRt ST Wl 3eiel
R HaTeh! SR faf=T aawT W ef T YU B | 38Tt AuTe T Sk T fafi=T st T g
R H-HEATEEaR] HeTeish HIHTaHT STEeT T HalTeTshshl TUAT Fqcaarait SJfHeRT HaT TiEe] Uh & |
Feiel T, T, U, (MBA) @FTshT 3= TYTalT STt 1T Wueh o |

Mr. Shankar Prasad Adhikari represents in the Bank's Board as an Independent Director. He is retired Secretary
of Government of Nepal (GoN). During his service period of more than thirty-years with GoN, Mr. Adhikari had
served the government in different capacities. In the past, Mr. Adhikari had served in the Board as a Chairman/
Member of various renowned Government entities, Council and Companies including Nepal Rastra Bank,
Academic Council Nepal Academy, Electricity Authority, Nepal Airlines Corporation, Nepal Tourism Board. Mr.

Adhikari holds Master's degree in Business Administration.

HaTeh T AT drEielel Soh HodTerdh THIGHT TeeTaRuT SRREHIgEeR! Tfdirac Tg-o | Sl dar
U & | STRAT T ATERMT G37h! ATHT 1l ST © | a1 fafa=T gewerrT fafa= yeeear s1erg
§I5S | &1 38T oMsuns fefueest afte sutey, feu fufean oo fafree (fewr &m) =r wemers €
T =aTEy oiarstt fafiee (THeidt) T eTeey UeHT HRIRd §IE-0 | I, 38T STISuns Hied ur.fer.a
HaTetsh afafaa g | el faei e TSt HTdehtR MU & |

Mr. Suman Pokharel represents Public Shareholders in the Bank's Board. He was elected as one of the two
uncontested Board Members from the Public Shareholders’ group by the 3rd Annual General Meeting of
the Bank. He holds decades long experience in Nepalese business. Mr. Pokharel is associated with several
organizations in different capacities. At present, he is Senior Vice President of IME Ltd., Board Director of Dish
Media Network Limited (Dish Home) and Chairman of Smart Choice Technologies Limited (SCT). He is also the
Board Member of IME Motors Pvt. Ltd. Mr. Pokharel holds Master’s degree in Business Studies.
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Ms. Lima Adhikari Acharya represents Public Shareholders in the Bank's Board. She was elected as one of the
two uncontested Board Members of the Public Shareholders’ group by the 3rd Annual General Meeting of the
Bank. She is associated with several organizations in different capacities. At Present, she is an Independent
Director of Emerging Nepal Ltd., Executive Member of Nepal Chamber of Commerce, General Secretary of

Nepal Women Chamber etc. Ms. Acharya holds Master’s degree in Business Administration.
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN, ANUJ AGARWAL

AR FETEAT AEmwEEe aan i sifafasugz,

T AU SRR Sk Tafaeeshr <t anfier @rerror
T gl e SR Woaw TiEmE aemEn
TR &7 ey WUehIehT TFUT HETJTEEEAT #RT SafehTd
AT SioF INATERT qhaTe ETfass NI qUT AR & T

g |

faprarE 7 faFlad Addesedl TEHIE JTTTT &l
AYFAT Tad JAIRA HARF! Adeh T IR
forepTHAT Joet@d ANTRTA TR UTgeg, | BT 2lfee T
GISTh ATHINE FATRE qoT e dfgehr AhT qel
for ST, wHEA, SARTE, el T ATHING JATHRes
g A e fawmere fatve Hemeed
TET FIAT TAT I ALHRebT & AT ATSTAT T
qeIETdTE T S, |

FHT YU faem § qarawer afarsHeer fadi
T ITHTSIE FUTRAROTHT ATNT HEed P! ARATTATESHT
[sT &l AT Al WEHIRTaTars Afdig T T
IS TG o |

fergereamdy FoHT Gfeuedr HRAT werders e T
AT AT A=ARAMGT AT ATATI U A ATHRT
SUTIEE, T-Th IGATE ATT-AHT Tehl THTE, STSTRHAT
IMGUHT TAT AT, SATSTEIHT HUHT Fig AMIT [T
AR fAEeR fEers a9 AR g ey s |
T, FTAAETATs HAMSR e SGH AT
IIIH SUTIES FaeF e TR aarges et
AT SEREAEEH AN TR HiAE qig T9 T
oA At gfaeg W AT 9 B |

Respected Shareholders and distinguished

guests

| would like to extend my heartfelt welcome and gratitude
to you all personally and on behalf of the entire NIFRA
family for accepting our invitation and participating in this
auspicious occasion of the 4th Annual General Meeting of
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited.

When we look at the background of developing and
developed countries, we find that it is their robust and
sustainable infrastructure that contributes to the economic
and social development of such nations. It becomes evident
from the various studies conducted by the different entities
and Nepal Government’s sectoral infrastructure plans
and targets that we need to build a lot of infrastructures
in energy, tourism, industry, urban and social sectors in
order to achieve the social transformation and economic
development that we have desired.

As our strategic direction itself is to fill the gap in the
financial access of the infrastructure projects, we have
been working towards promoting participation of private
sector in the projects which are significantly important for
economic and social transformation of the nation.

The events and circumstances like the measures adopted
nationally and internationally to contain Covid-19 spread
across the world, effects of Russia-Ukraine war on our
economy, liquidity crunch in our market, hike in interest
rates and pressure observed in our foreign currency
reserves are likely to continue to affect the infrastructure
development adversely in the coming days too. Despite
the same, the Board of Directors of your bank is committed
to continue to improve the return on your investment by
accepting the challenges and adopting the appropriate
risk management tools in all our business activities.
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The bank has been successful in growing the size of its
quality investment portfolio considerably in a short span
of time and in increasing the operational profit each
year. Maintaining the strategic geographical and sectoral
diversification, the bank has approved loans of NPR 32.89
billion in more than two dozens of projects. In line with its
short term and long term strategies, on one hand the bank
has been continuing to grow its loan portfolio in projects
available in the current market, where as on the other
hand, the Bank has accelerated the initiative of creating
a ‘Project Pipeline’ including infrastructure projects, in
private sector participation approach, which are significant
for economic and social transformation of the country. In
order to conduct preparatory developments on a project
like identification, feasibility study and capital/financial
structuring and making the projects ready for kick-off,
the Bank has invited various domain experts and started
studying in collaboration various projects like energy,
urban infrastructure, industrial infrastructure etc.

Activities done and Experiences gained during
Review Period

We fully understand the responsibilities NIFRA needs
to bear as an only infrastructure development bank, at
a time when Nepal is moving ahead towards the goal
of achieving economic prosperity through infrastructure
development. Since commercial operation, we have taken
on several long term initiatives like raising large sized
long term stable funds from domestic and foreign capital
markets through Infra-Bond, Energy Bond, Green Bond,
participating in formulation of far reaching policies, acts
and modalities required for financing socially important
infrastructure projects through global best practices
including engagement for providing inputs for amendment
of Bylaws related to Hedging which is essential for
attracting foreign investments.

The bank has started the process of issuing sectoral debt
instruments to raise long term low cost capital required for
large infrastructure projects. Likewise, in order to manage
the fund required for conducting the preparatory studies
on the newly conceptualized projects, the Bank has also
started the process of establishing a ‘Project Incubation
Fund’ in collaboration with national and international
agencies who could be the potential partners of NIFRA for
developing such projects.
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In order to identify, develop and to promote the policy
framework required for the same, the Bank needs to
coordinate with the Government and all other related
stakeholders. Keeping this need in priority, the Bank
continues to maintain cordial relationships with all three
layers of the Nepal Government, public enterprises,
regulators, development agencies, international banks
and financial institutions, retirement funds, insurance
companies and private sector entities.

Going forward, | would like assure you all that we shall
further improve our relations, grow our investments
and significantly enhance our professional image by
converting our initiatives into realities through result
oriented approaches. Expecting your continued support
and guidance in the Bank’s journey ahead, | would once
again like to extend our heartfelt gratitude for your glorious
presence in this Annual General Meeting.

Thank You all.

Anuj Agarwal
Chairman,
Board of Directors
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Dear valued shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to share a few words about
the bank and its meaningful journey. Within a very short
period, the bank has been recognized as a leading entity
for financing infrastructure projects in Nepal. | sincerely
thank the respected Shareholders, the Chairperson, the
Board of Directors, the Government of Nepal, Nepal
Rastra Bank, the Customers and all other stakeholders of
the Bank for their support and guidance.

Objectives and direction of the Bank

As you all know, NIFRA, the only infrastructure bank
in Nepal, has been gearing up its initiatives toward
infrastructure development in the country. We are setting
standards for developing and financing infrastructure
projects, and such standards are aligned with international
best practices. Aiming to contribute in building ‘Infra
Eco-system’ for infrastructure development, the Bank
has set its functional and strategic direction to work in
developing policy framework, institutional structuring,
innovation of new instruments and sectoral development
of infrastructure. Similarly, we have established strategic
partnerships with national and international entities to
develop infrastructure projects, and | believe they will
contribute to accelerating growth in the country.

Along with financing infrastructure projects from the private
sector, NIFRA has focused its attention on identifying,
developing and operating public infrastructure projects
which are developed under Public Private Partnership
(PPP) modality. NIFRA has set up a Project Incubation
Fund (PIF) for the project identification, studies, and
structuring. The Bank has been successful in securing
Technical Assistance (TA) from the development partners
for some of the projects and the Bank is making every
effort for continuation of such partnerships in future as well.
NIFRA also has initiated setting up an Infrastructure Fund
for making equity investments in infrastructure projects.
The Fund shall be utilized for developing and financing
transformative projects such as Energy infrastructure,
Urban and Social infrastructure, Industrial infrastructure,
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and Tourism infrastructure. Such projects are planned to
be financed and developed in collaboration with national
and international entities under the leading role of NIFRA.

Management of Resources

Nepal aspires to graduate from the least developed
country (LDC) status to a middle-income country by 2030.
Similarly, it aims at achieving the Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) during the same period. To materialize
such huge aspirations, a large amount of investment is
required in various aspects of the economy, including
infrastructure development. Various studies reveal that
Nepal has to invest between 8 to 12 percent of its GDP to
adequately develop its infrastructure. The private sector
has an instrumental role in fulfilling the investment gap in
infrastructure. As such, NIFRA has taken up a pivotal role
in leveraging investment and participation of private sector
in the infrastructure development in the country.

Where as the growing contraction in global economy,
uncertainties and rising cost of financing instruments
resulting from various circumstances have added
challenges in resource management for Nepalese
infrastructure projects too, it has necessitated the
management of low cost resources in order to improve
the viability and sustainability of such infrastructure
projects. The Bank has been engaging with various
entities for facilitating changes in policy and procedures
for tapping resources available in domestic market
through development of various innovative instruments
like Infrastructure Bond, Green Bond, Infrastructure Fund,
Commercial Blending, Insurance Bond, Green Climate
Fund etc. NIFRA firmly believes such instruments, which
are already being used as major source for infrastructure
development internationally, shall be a significant
milestone for infrastructure development in Nepal.

Corporate Governance and Institutional Capacity
Building

In the course of executing its strategies, the Bank has
developed required policies and guidelines for effective
corporate governance and meaningful institutional
capacity building. We are developing required policies
and frameworks such as PPP Project Financing
Guideline, Urban Infrastructure financing guideline,
Energy Infrastructure Financing Guideline, Industrial
Infrastructure Financing Guideline and Consulting Service
Procurement Guideline. The Bank has developed its
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‘4-year strategic Business Plan’ to meet the Bank’s aspiration
toward becoming a nodal entity for infrastructure financing
in the country. Acknowledging the fact that human resource
is the backbone of the Bank’s success, staff members are
regularly nominated for training and seminars, within and
outside the country, for their capacity building.

Finally,

| would like to assure you that the Bank Management shall
remain committed to building on the financial and non-
financial milestones already achieved by the Bank. | would
again like to express my heartfelt gratitude for all the support,
guidance, and trust extended by the respected Shareholders,
the Government of Nepal, Ministry of Finance, Nepal Rastra
Bank and other regulatory authorities, the Board of Directors,
and all the Customers. | would also like to thank all the staff
members for their relentless efforts and contributions.

Ram Krishna Khatiwada
Chief Executive Officer
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MR. RAM KRISHNA KHATIWADA,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(MBS, CFA, ChE, PHD Scholar)

Mr. Khatiwada has 20 years plus of
professional experience in project finance,
infrastructure finance, energy finance,
project development & management,
managing investment bank & financial
institutions. He was associated with
NIBL Capital Markets Limited, HIDCL,
IBN, Electricity Regulatory Commission
Nepal in various senior and leadership
positions. Mr.Khatiwada holds MBS,
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA),
Chartered Economist (ChE) and CP3
Foundation. He is pursuing PHD in
Infrastructure Finance.
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MR. SURYA BAHADUR TAMANG,
DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER -
BUSINESS (MBA)

Mr. Surya Bahadur Tamang
has more than 31 years of
banking experience. He headed
Corporate Credit of Siddhartha
Bank Ltd and worked as
Relationship Manager (Credit) of
Nabil Bank Ltd. He also served
as Civil Servant under Ministry
of Health. Mr. Tamang holds
Master's degree in Business
Administration.
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MR. BINAYA NATH NEUPANE,
DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER -
RISK & OPERATIONS (MBA)

Mr. Binaya Nath Neupane has over
29 years of banking experience.
He has worked as Chief Marketing
Officer, Chief Business Officer and
Chief of Human Resource at Janata
Bank Nepal Ltd. He has also served
as Board Member of Swabalamban
Laghubitta Bikas Bank and as Credit
Risk Analyst, Branch Manager & head
of Liability Management of Nabil Bank
Ltd. Mr. Neupane holds Master's
degree in Business Administration.
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MR. SUWARN KUMAR SINGH,
HEAD RISK MANAGEMENT
(EMBA, MscIT)

Mr. Suwarn Kumar Singh has more
than 16 years of experience in
banking and institutional capacity
building. He worked as Director
of Studies of Nepal Administrative
Staff College (NASC) and as
Manager of Information Technology
of Nepal Bank Ltd. He also served
as consultant in various projects
funded by national and international
agencies. Mr. Singh holds Master's
degree in Business Administration
and Information Technology.
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MR. RABIN SHRESTHA,
HEAD - INFRASTRUCTURE
FINANCING (MBS)

Mr. Rabin Shrestha has more than
19 years of banking experience.
He worked as Country Head of
Corporate & Project Financing
of Prabhu Bank Lid and also
as Manager New Business of
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal
Ltd. He also worked as Corporate
& Commercial Banking Officer of
Citizens Bank International Ltd. Mr.
Shrestha holds Master's degree in
Business Studies.
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MR. GHANASHYAM OJHA,
VERTICAL LEAD-PUBLIC
INFRASTRUCTURES (MA, MPhil,
PHD Scholar)

Mr. Ojha has more than 20 years
of experience in infrastructure
project planning, policy, stakeholder
management and project
implementation. He worked as a full-
time embedded consultant for the IBN
on behalf of APPIIC, UK and funded by
FCDO, UK. He also worked for national
and international organizations
including The Carter Center, The
Berkshire Eagle (USA) and The
Kathmandu Post in different capacities
in the past. He holds Master's degree
in Arts, MPhil in Public Policy and he is
pursuing PhD in Public Policy.
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KEY
MANAGEMENT

LEFT TO RIGHT (STANDING)
LEFT TO RIGHT (SITTING)
MR. GHANASHYAM OJHA, VERTICAL LEAD — PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURES
MR. BINAYA NATH NEUPANE, DGM - RISK AND OPERATIONS MR. BISHAL SHAKYA, HEAD — INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
MS. LAKSHMI THAPA, HEAD — HUMAN RESOURCES AND ADMINISTRATION MR. RABIN SHRESTHA, HEAD — INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING AND INVESTMENT
MR. RAM KRISHNA KHATIWADA, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER MR. KIRIT RAYAMAJHI, HEAD — TREASURY AND OPERATIONS
MS. SMRITI SHARMA, HEAD — PUBLIC SECTOR ENGAGEMENT AND NEW INITIATIVES MR. ISWOR BANDHU GAUTAM, HEAD - LEGAL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
MR. SURYA BAHADUR TAMANG, DGM - BUSINESS MR. SUWARN KUMAR SINGH, HEAD - RISK MANAGEMENT
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AT ARG ;ﬂaqaﬁ T &HATgh W‘Iﬁ%@ ITEdr NIFRA has the small team of best human resources from
BHD| the Banking Industry and Development Sector.

BUSINESS, RISK AND OPERATIONS

MR. JEEVA NATH SAPKOTA  MR. SAURAV TIWARI MR. MANJIL MAN SHRESTHA MR. DINESH PANDEY MS. SHREEDEVI POUDYAL
TREASURY & OPERATIONS INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING ~ TREASURY & OPERATIONS RISK MANAGEMENT COMPLIANCE

| —_—=

MR. MANAN SHARMA MR. AJAYA GHIMIRE MR. RAJIB MALLA MS. SANJUPA GIRI MR. GOPAL MAHARJAN
INFRA EXCELLENCE CENTER INFRA EXCELLENCE CENTER TREASURY & OPERATIONS INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING ~ INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

MR. SULAV SHARMA MS. RAKSHA MALLA MS. ANWITI BHATTARAI MR. SURESH SHRESTHA MS. SARITA DAHAL
INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING ~ HUMAN RESOURCES INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING ~ COMPLIANCE CREDIT ADMINISTRATION

MR. NITESH DAHAL MR. PRAJWOL MUNANKARMI MS. ISWORI PAUDYAL
TREASURY & OPERATIONS GENERAL ADMINISTRATION CREDIT ADMINISTRATION
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PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE

MR. BIDUR RAJ GAUTAM MR. ANUP KUMAR SHRESTHA MR. ASHISH PURUSH MS. BABINA PRADHAN MR. ABIRAL KHATRI
ENERGY INFRA INDUSTRIAL INFRA DHAKAL URBAN INFRA PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE

MR. AAYUSH RAJ PANDEY
URBAN INFRA

ADMIN SUPPORT

MS. SUNIKSHA BARAL MR. DIPESH THAPA MR. SURESH TAMANG MR. KRISHNA MAHARJAN MR. SHYAM KRISHNA
WAGLE

MS. SARASWATI GAUTAM MS. SAPANA THING MR. PUTKE DHAMI MR. BIRKHA BAHADUR
TAMANG
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Respected Shareholders,

We would like to extend our heartfelt welcome and warm
greetings on behalf of the Board of Directors and whole
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited family to you all for
granting your gracious presence in the 4th Annual General
Meeting of this Bank.

| feel delighted to share in this dignified meeting the
financial reports of the Bank for FY 2021-22 including
balance sheet, profit and loss statement, details of other
comprehensive income, cash flow statements together
with the Bank’s business achievements and other major
strategically significant matters that the Bank has initiated
as it completes almost four years of its operations. Now |
request your permission to present this annual report of
the Board of Directors for FY 2021-22, prepared in line
with the relevant Acts, Rules and Directives.

A. Synopsis of the operations of the Bank during the
review period

We are all aware about the challenging conditions faced
by the banking and financial institutions industry during
the review period due to measures adopted nationally and
internationally to contain Covid-19 spread across the world,
effects of Russia-Ukraine war on our economy, liquidity
crunch in our market, hike in interest rates and pressure
observed in our foreign currency reserve. Despite these
adverse conditions, the Bank was able to achieve the
goals it had set in its strategic plans. The Bank is observed
to be heading in the desired course as indicated by the
growth during the review period in its lending portolio and
profit. | would now like to seek your permission to present
the synopsis of operations of the Bank during FY 2021-22.

1. Capital Structure

In the review period, Bank’s authorized capital of NPR
40 billion remained unchanged. Bank’s issued and paid-
up capital increased to NPR 21.60 billion from previous
year’s NPR 20 billion after issuance of 8% bonus share
declared in FY 2020-21. Including Nepal Government’s
share ownership of 10%, ownership of Bank’s promoters
remained at 60% where as ownership of general public
remained at 40%.

2. Loans

Bank has given loans to credit worthy and mainly private
sector promoted infrastructure projects available in the
market in sectors like Hydro-electricity, Tourism, Health
and Information & Technology. Whereas the Bank had
approved loans of NPR 17.7 billion and disbursed NPR 4.43
billion by the end of 2020-21, the approved and disbursed
loans reached NPR 32.89 billion and NPR15.58 billion by
the end of the review period. Further, the disbursed loan
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volume has reached NPR 17.80 billion by mid October of
running financial year. All the loan accounts of the Bank
have remained in pass category with regular repayment of
loan installments.

Similarly, the Bank has been engaging with all the
relevant stakeholders to carry out feasibility study, due
deligence and financial structuring of large infrastructure
projects like construction of livable urban infrastructure
(smart city) in Paanchkhal Municipality, operation of SEZ
with participation of private sector in Blocks B and C of
Simara Special Economic Zone, capital structuring for
development of Industrial Park in Shaktikhor and large
hydroelectricity projects with storage reservoirs. The pre-
disbursement studies and analyses for large projects like
these generally take long gestation period of around 3 to 5
years. In few years from now, the Bank expects that these
projects taken up will yield significant investment growth,
resulting in improvements in financial indicators of the
Bank and diversification in its loan/investment portfolio.
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3. Resources

As the Bank’s paid up capital was adequate to meet
disbursement requirement of approved loan accounts
during the review period, there was no need of raising
additional resource in the form of FDs. Hence, there has
not been any increment in the FD deposit volume of NPR
250 million.

As the Bank primarily needs to raise low cost long term
stable resources through debt instruments, the Bank
has allocated larger portion of its planned resources in
its business plan for debt instruments and has started
working on issuing instruments like energy bond,
infrastructure bond and insurer bond. At present, the Bank
has obtained approval for issuance of 'NIFRA Energy
Bond 7% (2085/86) from NRB and is waiting for final
approval from SEBON. The Bank plans to issue debt
instruments of NPR 10 billion including above mentioned
issuance in the current FY. Nevertheless, the Bank shall
collect fixed deposits also as required for its Asset Liability
Management.

4. Placements in Commercial Bank FDs and

Government Securities

The Bank’s placements in Fixed Deposits of various Class
A commercial banks as on the close of the review period
stood at NPR 9.66 billion, being within the provisions
of Unified Directive of Nepal Rastra Bank issued to
infrastructure development banks. The volume of this
placement was NPR 18.57 billion in the previous year.
The volume of FD placements is in declining trend as the
loan disbursements in approved projects are picking up.
By mid October of current FY, the total of placements in
commercial banks has come down to NPR 6.37 billion.
Bank does not have investments in Government Securities
as on close of the review period and as on mid October.

5. Total Assets

Bank’s total assets at the close of the review period stood
at NPR 25.86 billion which was NPR 24.42 billion the
previous year.

6. Interest Income

During the review period, Bank’s interest income stood at
NPR 1928.8 million which was 1362.9 million in previous
year. The increment in the market interest rates and
growth in Bank’s loan volume have primarily contributed to
the increment in interest inome. This will further increase
gradually as the Bank’s investments increase.

Net Interest Income (NII)

NPR. 1.88 Billion
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7. Commission and other income

Bank has collected NPR 32.3 million as Loan Management
Fee during the review period and the same has been
deferred as per provisions of NFRS. Besides the deferred
amount mentioned above, the share of commission and
other income in the Bank’s profit is NPR 9.682 million,
which was NPR 1.976 million in previous year.

8. Net Profit

In the review period, the Bank’s net profit stood at NPR
1022.5 million which was 837.4 million in previous year.
The Bank has prioritized optimum cost cutting measures
to increase its net profit. The Bank plans to further
increase its net profit with business growth in line with the
implemented business plan.

9. Net Worth per share

The Bank’s Net Worth per share stands at NPR 108.03
in the review period which was NPR 112 in the previous
year. The decline in Net Worth per share is observed due
to Bank’s capital growth resulted by the 8% Bonus Share
issued during the review period.

10. Earning per Share

The earning per share of the Bank stands at NPR 4.95 in
the review period which was NPR 5.35 in the previous
year. The decline in Earning per Share is observed due
to Bank’s capital growth resulted by the 8% Bonus Share
issued during the review period.

11. Non-Performing Loan
The Bank does not have any Non-Performing Loan in the
review period.

12. Loans Written Off
In the review period, the Bank did not write-off any loans.

B) National and International Economic Scenario

I would like to briefly discuss about National and
International Economic Scenario covering the challenges
observed in overall economy and the opportunities
available upon managing them.

1. Global Economic Outlook

The growth of World economy, which had expanded by 6.1
percent in 2021, is estimated by International Monetary
Fund (IMF) to be limited at 3.6 percent in 2022. The Fund
projects the growth rate of advanced economies to be
limited at 3.3 percent in 2022 compared to 5.2 percent
in previous year. Similarly, the Fund projects the growth
rate of emerging economies to be limited at 3.8 percent
compared to 6.8 percent in previous year.
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The IMF has projected inflation in advanced economies
to be 5.7 percent in 2022. The average inflation in such
economies was 1.5 percent in the last decade. Similarly,
inflation in the emerging and developing economies
is projected to reach 8.7 percent in 2022 compared to
average of 5.1 percent in the last decade.

The IMF and the World Bank have projected that the world
economy may go into recession along with the rise in
interest rates in developed and emerging economies due
to tight policy provisions and inflationary pressure.

(Source: Monetary Policy of Nepal for 2022-23 published
by Nepal Rastra Bank)

2. Domestic Economic Situation

Nepalese economy has also been affected directly
and indirectly by the recent developments in the global
economy. The pressure on price and external sector
stability as well as the contraction in the supply of loanable
fund have created a challenge for Nepal in its path to
economic recovery from the pandemic including achieving
high economic growth. The y-o-y consumer inflation stood
at 8.56 percent in mid-June 2022. However, in the eleven
months of 2021-22, the average consumer inflation is
6.09 percent. In 2021-22, rising imports and the decline in
foreign exchange reserves have built pressure on external
sector management. The decline in foreign currency
reserves owing to the current account and balance of
payments deficit has created pressure on the banking
system liquidity and increased the interest rates.

Central Bureau of Statistics has estimated the economic
growth of Nepal to be 5.84 percent in 2021-22. Economic
growth is mainly supported by electricity generation,
expansion in construction activities, and revival of the
tourism sector. In 2020-21, the economic growth rate was
4.25 percent.

(Source: Monetary Policy of Nepal for 2022-23 published
by Nepal Rastra Bank)

In 2022 projected inflation in
advanced economies

5.7 Percent

In FY 2021-22 estimated
economic growth of Nepal

5.84 Percent
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3. Financial Sector Situation

Total deposits at Banks and Financial Institutions (BFls)
stood at NPR 5083 billion and private sector credit
amounted to NPR 4621 billion as on mid July 2022. In
the review period, the deposits at BFIs expanded by
9 percent which in the previous year was 21.4%. As on
mid-July 2022, the compositions of Current, Savings and
Fixed Deposits in total deposits remained at 8.9%, 27.6%
and 55.8% respectively, which in the previous year were
10.4%, 34.2% and 47%. As on mid-Juy 2022, share of
institutional deposits in total deposit of BFIs was 38.3%,
which in previous year was 42.7%.

In the review period, private sector credit extended by BFls
expanded by 13.1 percent. In previous year, the same
had expanded by 27.3 percent. As on mid-July 2022,
the share of credit extended to non-financial institutional
sector remained at 63.3 percent of total credit extended
by BFIs where as share of credits extended to personal
and household sector remained at 36.7 percent. In the
previous year, such compositions were 63.6 percent and
36.4 percent respectively. In the review period, private
sector credit extended by commercial banks, development
banks and finance companies grew by 12.7%, 13.9% and
29.8% respectively. As on mid-July 2022, 66.4% of credits
extended by BFls were against security of real-estate and
12.3% were against current assets (agricultural and non-
agricultural products).

As on mid-July 2021, ratio of loans against such
securities were 66.1% and 12.7% respectively. In FY
2021/22, BFIs’ loans in agricultural sector grew by 19.7%,
Industrial production sector grew by 8%, transportation,
communication and public service sector by 15.7%,
wholesale and retail trading sector by 13.3% and service
industry sector by 8.7%. In the review period, BFIs’ term
loan grew by 28.4%, overdraft loan by 13.3%, demand
and working capital loan by 15.2% and real estate loan
(including personal housing loans) by 17.5% whereas trust
receipt (import) loan, margin lending and hire-purchase
loans declined by 61.9%, 24.3% and 2.2% respectively.

Of the total 753 local levels, commercial banks extended
their branches at 752 levels as of mid-July 2022. The
number of local levels having commercial bank branches
was 750 a year ago.

The total number of BFIs licensed by NRB remained 126
in mid-July 2022. As of mid-July 2022, 26 commercial
banks, 17 development banks, 17 finance companies,
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65 microfinance financial institutions and 1 infrastructure
development bank are in operation. The number of BFls
branches reached 11,528 in mid-July 2022 from 10,683 in
mid-July 2021.

(Source: ‘Current Macroeconomic and Financial Situation
based on Annual Data of 2021-22’ published by NRB)

4. Investments in Infrastructure Sector

Nepal Government has included various infrastructure
development programs like infrastructure development
and capital formation, electricity generation and expansion
of transmission network, transformation of agriculture
sector, industrial development and entrepreneurship
promotion in Government’s budget for current fiscal year.
Programs like constructing and operating industrial parks
in PPP model, constructing and operating infrastructure of
105 industrial villages in equity participation of all three
levels of governments, bringing Bhairahawa and Simara
SEZs into full fledged operations, constructing SEZ in
Paanchkhal, financial structuring of Nijgadh International
Airport, bringing Gautam Bhuddha International Airport and
Pokhara International Airport into full fledged operations,
developing infrastructure for amusement parks and
adventure tourism in mountainous and hilly regions in PPP
model, establishing of agro-production based industries,
establishing modern recreation centres, constructing
Chandragiri — Chitlang- Palung- Chitwan fast track,
Chitwan — Butwal fast track, Chitwan — Rampur — Pokhara
fast track, issuing green bonds for transformative large
infrastructure projects are covered in the Government’s
budget.

(Source: Budget speech of Nepal government for FY
2022-23)

4.1. Infrastructure sector situation of the country
Embracing our role of fulfilling the gap in investments in
the private and public infrastructures, we have initiated
studies and discussions required for maing investment in
socially and economically significant public infrastructures.
In this context, Half yearly report on Economic Activity
Study (Consolidated) published by Nepal Rastra Bank on
mid-July 2022 indicates following situation of the country’s
infrastructure:

Road:

As on mid-March 2022, total length of road reached 33,871
KM including 16939 KM black topped road, 8111 KM gravel
road and 8821 KM earthen road. As on mid-March of
FY 2021-22, 1157 KM road out of 1,879 KM of Pushpalal
Mid Hill Highway was upgraded to the black topped
road. Similarly, of North-South LokMarga Kaligandaki
Corridor (444 KM), 64 KM of 245 KM Gaidakot-Ramdi-
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Maldhunga section has been blacktopped, 132 KM out
of 199KM Maldhunga-Beni-Jomsom-Korala section has
been graveled and 25 KM of same section has been
blacktopped.

Airport:

There are 20 international aircraft carriers flying in Nepal.
This year Gautam Buddha International Airport Project has
come into operation after completion of its construction.
Similarly, 90% of Pokhara Regional International Airport
Project’s construction has been completed. The number
of airports operating in all seasons is 34. There are 19
airports which are not in operations and there are 1
domestic and 2 international airports under construction.

Tunnel Road:

2.5 KM long tunnel road project from Dahachok, Thankot,
Kathmandu to Sisnekhola is completed 35.50% physically
and 45.50% financially (including mobilization) as on
mid May of FY 2021-22. The completion of the project is
expected to shorten the lengh of the road by 2.38 KM,
save time to enter the Kathmadu valley by 23 minutes,
to exit the valley by 14 minutes and reduce the vehicular
accidents by 50%.

Hydroelectricity:

As on mid March 2022, total capacity of Grid Connected
Hydroelectricity plants reached to 2205 MW from 1685
MW whereas 5772 GWh of electricity has been consumed.
Access to electricity has reached 94% of the total
population. Upper Tamakoshi Hydroelectriciy project has
been completed in FY 2020-21. Its all 6 units of turbines
have started generating 456 MW electricity. Operations of
this project is expected to meet the electricity demands of
industrial sector thereby reducing their input costs.

Transmission Line:

The lengh of the 66 KV to 440 KV transmission line has
reached 5329 KM in FY 2021-22. Similarly, construction
of 315 KM transmission line and 856 towers have been
planned in joint investment of Nepal Government and
Millenium Challenge Corporation (MCC). Further, the
project of constructing transmission line from Butwal
to Gorakhpur, India has kicked off in joint investment of
Nepal and India. These existing and underconstruction
transmission lines shall contribute in meeting the mid and
long term goals of electricity supply and domestic and
cross border electricity trade.
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National Pride Projects:

Some National Pride Projects have remained incomplete
since a long time. The progress of most of the National
Pride Projects continued to be slow during FY 2021-22
also. Nevertheless, Upper Tamakoshi Hydrowpower
Project was completed in this period.

(Source: Based on Half Yearly Report of FY 2021-22
on Economic Activity Study (consolidated) published by
Nepal Rastra Bank)

4.2 Challenges and Opportunities in Infrastructure
Sector Investment Growth

Challenges:

Finding a long-term solution to resolve disputes on
indentification, valuation, acquisition and compensation
distribution for land required for construction of
physical infrastructure, attracting foreign investments
in manufacturing and export oriented industries, bring
investment of Non-resident Nepalese into infrastructure
sector, inadequacy of clear acts and provisions regarding
foreign direct investments, lack of provisions and market
for currency hedging, impractical provisions regarding
land ceiling for establishing industries and mortgaging
the same for borrowing loans from Banks and Financial
Institutions, completing the projects with pre-specified
quality in budgeted time and cost are major challenges
observed for accelerating infrastructure development.

Similarly, ensuring availability of qualified local labors
and experts for infrastructure projects, implementing
performance based result oriented project management
processes, building capacity of contractors required
for accelerating infrastructure development, achieving
long term goals of infrastructure development while
minimizing deforestation and adverse impacts on nature
water sources and managing coordination among various
stakeholders are also some of the major challenges.

Opportunities:

Contructing large reservoir hydroelectricity projects,
expansion of high voltage cross-border transmission lines,
construction and expansion of toll-based tunnel ways and
expressways, development of industrial parks and SEZs
to promote import substitution and exports, construction
of urban infrastructures equipped with modern facilities,
raising resources from international markets through
green bonds so as to capitalize on the potential of renewal
energy generation in Nepal, production and export
of cement and steel rods, promoting tourism through
utilization of nation’s tourism infrastructures like under-
construction/operating airports, hotels are opportunities in
infrastructure development perspective.
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C. Board of Directors view on achievements in the
current year and future plans

As at 17 Oct 2022, the Bank’s loan outstanding in approved
loans remained at NPR 17.80 billion. Similarly, Bank total
assets reached NPR 24.84 billion, interest income NPR
666.1 million, interest expense NPR 10.4 million, net profit
NPR 378.6 million and networth NPR 23.71 billion. The
Board of Directors of the Bank plans to continue improving
all financial indicators in current FY compared to the
review period.

In line with its goals, objectives and strategies, the Bank has
implemented a business plan to raise resources through
long term instruments and expand investment portfolio
of credit worthy projects. In the course of conducting its
business activities, the Bank prioritizes compliance of
nation’s acts, laws and directives of the regulator and
continuously strengthening risk management framework.
Similarly, the Bank continues to support various institutions
under its Corporate Social Responsibility.

As in previous years, the Bank continues to partner with
all three layers of the Governments, Government and
Public Enterprises, private sector, development partners
and banks in order to explore avenues of raising long
term resources and making investments for infrastructure
development in line with its long term business plans.

D. Industrial and Professional Relationships of
the Bank

In order to expand its industrial and business horizons,
the Bank has established cordial relationships with all the
infrastructure related stakeholders and is entering into
MOUs/agreements with various Goverenment entities,
Provincial Governments and Municipalities in order to
identify their feasible projects and raise financial resources
for the same. Similarly, the Bank has established cordial
relationship with bilateral and multilateral organizations
and international consultants such as World Bank, Asian
Development Bank (ADB), The Foreign, Commonwealth
and Development Office (FCDO), Japan International
Cooperation Agency (JICA), UNCDF, UN Habitat, PwC,
Surbana Jurong, JLL etc. Similarly, the Bank exchanges
views and feedbacks on many concerning matters with
industries/business associations in Nepal like Federation of
Nepalese Chamber of Commerce and Industries (FNCCI),
Confederation of Nepalese Industries (CNI), Nepal-German
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Nepal-USA Chamber
of Commerce and Industries, Confederation of Banks and
Financial Institutions Nepal (CBFIN) being their member.
Accordingly, the Bank plans to establish and strengthen
cordial relationships with all the stakeholders who are
significant for the Bank in terms of its business.
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E. Changes in the Board of Directors

The Board Meeting held on 2021-09-20 nominated Mr.
Shankar Prasad Adhikari as an independent director of
the Bank. Similarly, as per the letter dated 2021-10-05
received from Ministry of Finance, Mr. Kedar Nath Sharma
was nominated as a director in place of Mr. Dhani Ram
Sharma who had been representing Ministry of Finance in
the Board. Similarly, Annual General Meeting of the Bank
held on 2021-12-15 elected Mr. Suman Pokharel and Ms.
Lima Adhikari Acharya as directors representing general
public shareholders. Besides above changes, there has
been no other change in the Board of Directors during
review period.

F. Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Bank has been conducting the Board Meetings in line
with the prevalent acts and regulations guiding the Bank.
During FY 2021-22, a total of 17 Board Meetings were
held.

G. Major Factors affecting the Bank’s business
The major factors affecting the Bank have been highlighted
below:

1. As the measures including lockdowns adopted in the
country for containing spread of COVID-19 pandemic
contracted the overall economy, the projects financed
by the Bank have been impacted by cost and time over-
run.

2. As the interest rates of Indian Currency G-Secs
climbed in global market, the Bank had not issued INR
referenced Foreign Currency Bond.

3. Asthe exchange rate of USD appreciated against NPR,
the cost of imported inputs in the projects financed by
NIFRA further climbed.

4. As the liquidity crunch deepened in the market during the
review period, the availability of funds from interbank
market became uncertain, thus adding challenge for
NIFRA to manage day to day liquidity. On the other
hand, this also created opportunity for NIFRA to deploy
its surplus funds.

5. Completing construction of infrastructure projects
in prescribed time, cost and quality, accelerating
infrastructure development through capacity building
of skilled contractors, managing co-ordination among
various stakeholders will also affect Bank’s business.
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Taking these factors into account, Bank is committed to
develop and implement appropriate strategies and plans
to achieve its set objectives with respect to infrastructure
development in the country.

H. Board’s response to the Audit Comments

Besides few insignificant irregularities, the Audit Report of
the Bank for FY 2021-22 does not report any comment that
is likely to affect Bank’s business adversely. The corrective
measures have been taken for reported irregularities.

I. Recommendation for Dividend distribution

From distributable profit out of retained earning as per
financial report of FY 2021-22, the decision was made to
propose to distribute cash dividend of NPR 909,468,000
(Rs Nine hundred nine million four hundred sixty eight
thousand only) being 4.2105% of the paid up capital of Rs
21.60 billion, which is proposed to be distributed as per
clearance from Nepal Rastra Bank in line with Bank and
Financial Institution Act 2073, Clause 47 and only after
approval of Nepal Government, Ministry of Finance in line
with Company Act 2063, Clause 182 (2).

J. Number of shares seized, value of such seized
shares, funds received by the Bank before seizure
of such shares and fund collected by the Bank from
sales of seized shares and fund reimbursed against
such shares

No shares of the Bank have been seized during the review
period.

K. Progress of the Bank or its subsidiary company
during the review period and evaluation of the same
at the end of the review period

The bank does not have any subsidiary company till date.

L. Major transactions of the Bank and its subsidiary
company and any major changes in the transactions
during the review period

The bank does not have any subsidiary company till date.

M. Information provided by the substantial
shareholders of the Bank during the review period.
No such information obtained from any of the substantial
shareholders.

N. Details of share ownership of Directors and Officials
of the Bank and information received by the Bank from
them if they are involved in the share transactions of
the Bank during the review period.
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No such information has been received by the Bank.

O. Information obtained with respect to personal
interests of the Directors or their relatives with
reference to agreements entered with the Bank during
the review period.

No such information obtained by the Bank during the
review period.

P. In case the Bank has purchased its own shares
during the review period, information regarding
reasons for purchasing the shares, the nhumber and
value of shares purchased and the payments made by
the Bank for such shares

Till date the Bank has not purchased its own shares

Q. Internal Control Mechanism

The Bank has adopted a policy of making its internal
control mechanism robust in view of the risks inherent
in its business activities. The Bank has constituted Risk
Management Committee, Human Resource Management
Committee, Audit Committee and Anti Money Laundering
Committee in line with the Directives issued by Nepal
Rastra Bank to infrastructure development banks. These
committees periodically conduct meetings and fulfil their
duties and responsibilities as specified in the Directives,
issue required directions and suggestions to the Bank
Management and submit their opinions, suggestions and
reports to the Board of Directors as required.

In addition to these committees, there are Management
level committees actively involved in managing and
monitoring day to day business activities. With an intent
to minimize and control the credit risk, operational
risk, liquidity risk, market risk, interest rate risk, foreign
exchange risk and other risks associated with the Bank’s
operations, the Bank has established well-structured
departments and policy framework and is focused on
continuously enhancing the effectiveness of the internal
control mechanisms of the Bank. The Bank is committed
to further enhance the capability and competence of these
units, departments and human resources in the future and
ensure timely roll-outs and amendmets of the policies,
rules and guidelines.

The Bank has in place an Internal Auditor to monitor
and evaluate the internal control mechanisms, audit
procedures and processes and dissemination of financial
information and reports of the Bank. The Internal Auditor
also ensures that the departments and operations of the
Bank are functioning in line with the relevant act, policies
and procedures. In the review period also, the Bank
outsourced an independent auditor for internal audit of the
Bank as done in the previous year.
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R. Details regarding total operating expenses in the
last fiscal year

Out of total amount of Rs. 294,792,544 as per Annexures
4.36, 4.37 and 4.38 of the Profit and Loss Statement, total
operating expenses of the Bank stood at Rs. 132,159,667
in the FY 2021-22.

S. List of Members in the Audit Committee,
remuneration, allowance and facilities of these
members, report of operations of the Committee and
recommendations given by the Committee

As per the provision of Nepal Rastra Bank as well as
relevant acts and policies of the country, the Board
has constituted an Audit Committee chaired by a non-
executive Director. The main objective of this committee
is to monitor overall financial position of the Bank, review
the internal control mechanism of the Bank, evaluate
the auditing plan, monitor the irregularities pointed out
by internal and external auditors and advise the Bank
Management to take corrective actions on the same and
report to the Board whether the observations made by
NRB during its inspection and supervision of the Bank
have been regularized.

There were a total of 6 meetings of the Audit Committee
in the FY 2021-22 at total expense of NPR 80,000 as
meeting allowances.

T. Details of the receivable, if any, from Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, Substantial Shareholders or
their relatives or firms where they are associated.

No such receivable was booked in FY 2020-21.

U. Remuneration, Allowance and facilities provided to
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Officials of the
Bank.

Details of payments made to the Directors in the
FY 2021-22:

m“

1 Meeting Allowances for Board members 1,070,000
and Directors representing in Board

Level Committees

2 Other Expenses pertaining to Board and

Board Level Committee Meetings:

a) Travel Expenses

b) Other Expenses 298,070

Total Expenses 1,368,070
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Details of remuneration, allowance and facilities
provided to Chief Executive Officer and Managers:
The details remuneration, allowance and facilities provided
to Chief Executive Officer and Managers in FY 2020/21
are as given below:

mm

1 Chief Executive Officer 14,899,149
2 Deputy Chief Executive Officer 6,652,782
3 Deputy General Managers 14,969,820
4 Managers 26,499, 577

Total Expenses 63,021,328

Besides above, facilities to CEO in line with his contract
with the Bank and facilites to staff in line with Staff Service
Bylaws, 2075 are also being paid.

V. Dividend yet to be collected by shareholders
There is no such uncollected dividend outstanding.

W. Details regarding purchase and sale of assets as
per Clause 141 of Companies Act

During FY 2021/22, the Bank did not purchase or sell any
assets as per the Clause 141 of the Companies Act 2063
(2006), except for the purchases of necessary assets
required for operations of the Bank such as vehicle, office
equipment, furniture etc.

X. Details regarding transactions with affiliated
company as per Clause 175 of Companies Act

As per the Clause 175 of Companies Act 2063 (2006),
there has not been any transaction with the affiliated
companies during the review period.

Y. Other Details, if any, to be shared in the Director’s
Report as per the Companies Act 2063 (2006) and
other relevant Acts

The Bank would like to thank its statutory auditor, M/S MGS
and Associates Chartered Accountants, for successfully
conducting the audit of the Bank for the FY 2021/22.

Z. Human Resources

The Bank ensures participation of staff members into
various infrastructure and banking related trainings,
seminars and conferences in order to enhance their
competence. In order to maintain the morale of the Bank
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employees, the Bank offers remuneration, facilities and
growth opportunities at par with the industry. The Bank
has also enhanced the effectiveness of its performance
evaluation process so as to ensure effective and objective
evaluation of the employee performance. Bank has
allocated adequate budget and resources to ensure that
no gap remains in skill sets and growth of the employees.

Similarly, the Bank has established an ‘Infra Excellence
Center’ where consultants having domestic and
international experience in conducting preliminary
evaluation, preparing detailed project reports and financial
structuring for large infrastructure projects are empanelled
and assigned for technical and financial evaluation of
various projects. Additionally, the Bank has recruited
domain experts having expertise in sectors like energy,
urban infrastructure, industrial parks/SEZ under contract
basis.

A.a. Corporate Governance and Compliance

The Bank has always carried out its business activities
keeping Corporate Governance and Compliance at
the forefront. Hence the governance and compliance
culture is embraced by the officials and staff members
of all levels when conducting transactions in compliance
with the prevailing Acts and Rules, directives issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank and other regulatory authorities and
internal policies. The Bank has developed Compliance
Checklist and Codes of Conduct so that governance and
compliance are ensured right at the time of staff members
making transactions.

Besides above, the Bank, in the course of achieving its
objectives, has established a clear demarcation of roles,
responsibilities and duties of each of the employees of
the Bank in order to ensure accountability towards all the
stakeholders like Nepal Government, Nepal Rastra Bank,
other regulatory entities, society, shareholders, depositors
and borrowers. The Bank has been arranging participation
of its Directors, Senior Executives and employees
in various corporate governance related seminars,
workshops and trainings.
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A.b. Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank has been placing high emphasis towards
observing its Corporate Social Responsibility since its
inception by establishing a Corporate Social Responsibility
Fund at institutional level in line with directives of Nepal
Rastra Bank. During the review period, the Bank extended
financial support of NPR 200,000 to Society for Prevention
of Cruelty to Animal, Nepal which has been advocating for
wellbeing, rights and security of animals and conducting
rescue works for such animals. Similarly, the Bank
extended NPR 450,000 to Kathmandu Institute of Child
Health, a non-profit hospital for children of all social
class. Similarly, the Bank supported 5 low income auto-
rikshaw drivers with total of NPR 175,000 for procuring the
Conversion Kit required to convert their vehicles to run on
Bio-CNG.

A.c. Adherence to Know Your Customer (KYC) and
Anti Money Laundering (AML)

The Bank has been completely adhering to the prevailing
regulations and directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank
with respect to Know Your Customer and Anti Money
Laundering. The Bank has developed and implemented
required framework with reference to the respective
KYC and AML polices of the regulatory authorities. The
Compliance Unit and the compliance officer are constantly
monitoring whether the operations and activities of the
Bank are being conducted in line with the AML policies
and procedures of the Bank.

A.d. Implementation of suggestions received from the
shareholders

The Bank has been duly appreciating and implementing
the suggestions provided by its valued shareholders
directly or through different medium. The Bank hopes to
continue receiving such suggestions in the days to come.

Vote of Thanks

Finally, 1 would like to extend our deepest gratitude on
behalf of the Board of Directors and the entire NIFRA Family
to the shareholders, customers, the Government of Nepal,
Nepal Rastra Bank, Securties Board of Nepal, Company
Registrar’s Office, auditors and all other stakeholders for
your constant patronage towards the Bank.

Thank you once again.
Anuj Agarwal

Chairman
On behalf of the Board of Directors
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T T Te 936 ¥.9q 3R¥¥,9¥9,10% K00 RR K0¥
T AT AHAT TERN HioaTd ¥R 39Y 905,303 9,592 R%5,0%3
g qur focia SXEeHT Placements ¥.3 ,U9Y S%Y,3¥R 95,353, ¥\9%,059
Derivative fadiid T X.¥ - -
qT AIME  FFI %Y - }
% qur fofm SeomeReTs feuer # qum amadl ¥.% - -
Tedees fua F9 qar A ¥.8 9%,43%,0%9,29% WY 43T LG
[CRIEERT I TG ¥.5 = 9,35%,9%% $¥0
T B FEA ¥.9 - -
YEIH  HFIAMT AT ¥.q0 - -
THINTIE HFIHET AT ¥.99 = -
A FEIAT ¥ .93 - -
SESIT qIT ITHT ¥.93 905 %52 %9 5q,%%R,]40
qg q9T AHA FEIA ¥.q% 093,46 ©,3%9,%0%
WA HL qEIl ¥.9% 9%, %3 -
q FEIR ¥.9% 3 %%5 &Y 5,%¥50,959
FA W,5%],533 499 R¥,¥I3,R03,34R
fderer arer s=iturer I o1 Jfdast 3e]o1 31ardict DGR 2Adf
AT -HETTaIF UG FEER AfdEd HeeT BEIEEd
gy ar g=e
qoG WRAIG GBIcT ciietaroft Sieh B WG AADBRY
RIS RIS BEISED
.................................................................................... it et
BEISED BEISED
m: mlo;vm m.ﬁr.u.crarlgiw[{ms‘

wa.fug. e uenfauesd

c e ~
IS Th[3rdrdy
)

e faxm fafg e
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(@ ®)
oilc R ay ard a¥
Tt
% qur facir demeeers fod At ¥.909 q,849,%03,9%0 1,500,0%3,53%
A AL FpeATs faTd ArR ¥.95 - -
Derivative fa<ii ITLHIT ¥.99 = -
TTehetdld Hahiad [dard ¥.0 ¥35,095, ¥4\ 309,%3%,555
GIEE ¥.39 - -
o FR AT ¥.% 34,943 3¥,09%,0%0
T (Provisions) ¥R - -
VR #T qcd ¥.q4 - 9,345,5%%
q qIcae® ¥.R3 30%,9%%,499 ¥ 5RR,3R0
EREERSIEY ¥.RY¥ = -
Subordinated 3TIcag® ¥ ™ = -
FA A RASCAAAY! R,0%0,5¥3R%%
pl
NREE il ¥ 3% 29,500,000 000 30,000 000,000
SR futeas - -
Hierd g Q¥ IR,%9¥ 9,535,29%,5R¥
SST qaT HIUER ¥.R9 Bz %935R L9, 59,453
aeEeent ffed o doft 33,333,¥%0,04% 3R,¥09,945 359
frreaor FXE#r @rd (Non Controlling Interest) - -
Fa N R3,3%3,¥R0,048% RR,¥04, 45,35
FA qfuea qur ISt RY,E5%],5,499 ¥, ¥I3,R03, MR
FEATT qTfrca qor gidagar ¥.R5 1,30%,35%,33 983,¥54,¥5R
yid PR @& Ol HoA 105.03 19R.09
faer=r airer c=iurel A I Jfdast 3fe[o1 gt Do At
BIPERHCELCED I FEE Afawd qeeT BEIEES
SR qar "=
oG WRIIG GOIcT offetaroft ieh QIdR WG AEORY
EEIEES EEICE] EEICES
.................................................................................... IUFUINEN
EEIEE3 EEICE3
... e weieue
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GITWGT dT elia<drel fdazor
O HMEY R006c I IR AME 0K HH (TFH ®)
olic 2RI ad ard ad
N AT ¥.R% q,8%5,53%,9¥%3 9,3%R,093,¥ %
N g ¥.30 ¥%,095,9¢ % 9,053,255
g3 I AT q,553,509,35% q,334,R0%,¥3¢
odb qUT B AR ¥.39 %5335 9,209,343
e qOT FHIH @ ¥.3R ¥q,0%3 ¥R,03%
e Yod qUT HHAT AR ?,%39,194 9,33%,9%5
S AW, [od qT HHAYT AR 9,5%%,¥35,40¥ 9,339,5¥3893
gz AMAS AR ¥.33 - -
qT GATAT AT ¥.3% - -
ESIRKISE AT q,5%%,¥35,10¥ 9,3RO,5¥IRIR
FAT JAT 7T FEIAAT AT E=T/ (T ¥.3% 93¥,040,359 1%,533,53%
g g AT q,945,355,999 Q,3%9,09%,=¥
T @9
FHA @I ¥.3% R3R,5%5,09% 53,95 30
q GO @ ¥.39 39,%09,R6% 3,394
29 %adl dgr Amortization ¥ .35 R3,3R3,]%0 94,%¥9,59Y¢
SEISEIR R AR AER AR & L1 9,9%0,3R3,R5Y
TR AT AT ¥.3% 300,835 ©¥RY R ¥Y
T 9= @9 ¥ %0 900,%00 -
HAH AP FATH 9,¥%3,%%4,200 9,9%9,9¥5 3R
ATAHT @I ¥.¥q ¥¥9,9%5,39% 3%0,335 4RO
T B WYX L,943 3RO,R19,5RR
WRA HY (1,¥03,%¥39) qR0,9%35
ge AT/ () 9,03, X945 ¥ 539,¥90,393
FArEE fewn
T aRFe® q,0,43845¥ 539,%¥90,30%
o AT @1d (Non Controlling Interest) - -
Iq quel HATH q,0R3,4R845Y¥ 539, ¥90,3R
i AT AR
AEIRAT (Basic) Ifd X sm=TH ¥.%% 9434
gfIT (Diluted) fd &R AT ¥._Y 434
fderar airer s=ilurel 1T o1 Jfdast 3elT 3M3rdict DGR 2ot
BIPER:HPEECE THE R AT qeTE BEICEd
Sifgw A g
oG URITG GdIcT airetoroft it 2R WRiTG AADRY
BEISED SEIRED SEISED
qife ffaenr e
Herd ufqaeT SIgaR
qoTel UReRet e sftfory
KEIEE] REIEED v Riu. AZY IROTS
T
fHfd: [0 |0%10% iy o e weifaueg
W HSHIST, AT S THGIed

fdxqa 3no<rel fdazor

0 =AW 08z M@ IR AME 0K T
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(TFH ®.)

W qYH FATH

¥ fawqa smRMl, dEE TeETaw

Sfod el ST (S JUHLTHT SAT)
Sfed FeaAT WuH afeEdy

ATRT AFETH] HIOH @E A
YAHATHTAE AR g3 ATHT (A1)

A 948 Hedge

ST HedHT WUH qRAdAH JHEH Gue
ATRT ATFTTAT [AEANTRLT TR @& THH
iRy AT AT Ul Acturial  ATORT/ TEETH
o faeqa o g frdesT gratad aet
Fay A a7 fawa SR (T TeEaa)

4,049 5 Y 539,¥90,36%

Fafy sl Fa fawqa smRm

1,033 49U EY 539,¥90,393

Fq e R fe
THIE aFe®
fer e @nd (Non Controlling Interest)

1,033 4R9UTY 539,¥90,3%

Fafr sl P fawqa SR

9,033 XRONEY 539,¥90,3%%

fafa: oWRl0%10%
W HSATSY, A9
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sadicion ed! uRadam! fdazor

0 #MEU R06s 3@ IR ATWE R0 FE (TPH ')

Sadidl IRGETD) G IBD
forRIATGIBRY 3faa yoefcAida 3ifia afemm1 316 DIUEEH

MR Goft ARIROT

Sioonn  foRmeooren 0 Sidn sadidl

S1AST DY @Y FHoAibol ®y

L

000 HEW § WA HRW 43,000,000,000 355,938 ¥R5 KY,5¥9 - - RIVINAR 13589,5%% 93,53%,53%,3¥% 93,53%,53%,3¥%
099 HEW § T TR AR 93,000,000,000 35%,939¥%5 TR - - 9R3%,3 40 93,559,588 93,53¥,53%,3¥% 93,5£3¥,53%,3¥¢%
af s freqa amar
af wi@ Farer 539,¥90, 30 539,¥90, 303 539,¥90, 303
a fawqa g, @R aeEae -
Ifeq Heaida &, (AR ITLHIHAT &) - - -
AeATEAATE AU AT/ (AT - - -
qfeig T AT USR] Actuarial JTHT/ (TG - - -
TME Y4 Hedge @ WU ATHI/ (ArEETH) - - -
faxely fafrrweme st ATERT/ (AT
(fazerar wer fadi avosiiel wea afeadaare ghaa) - - -
T wiE g frega A - - - - - 539¥90,39% - 539,¥90,363 539,¥90,363
TG LA, HTHT HICTR 9%9,¥53,00% 9,%¥39 4,535,493 90,503,395 953,954,333 953,954,333
J9 ATAA FHUATS AT (995,05%,33R) (4,900,000) (953,954,323) (953,954,323)
AR S TR 5,000,000,000 (90,%\%,339) BRI URYEE] BRI UREE]
SATHT AT qehT1ee - - -
THE SIRIREFEEATS ATSHIE TR ATATLT - -
I ST AT T - - -
T AT fadwer wier - - - -
A AR qOT A %,000,000,000 - - - - (%0,%95,31) 9.R3%, 4R9,%§% 93], 439,88
095 NG FAFAH SFAT Hisard 30,000,000,000 YU ¥,R9%,493 ¥\9,009% - - 9,5%5,R9%,53Y 95,4%¥,%99 R, ¥0Q,945,359 R, ¥0Q,945,359
095 HEW q TAH HRQ 30,000,000,000 Y ¥,R9% 493 ®,09¥ - - 9,5%5,R9%,5RY 95,45 ¥,R99 R, ¥09,945,359 R, ¥09,945,359
0% HEW § T TR WS 30,000,000,000 Y Y98 493 %9,09¥ - - 9,535,R9%,5RY 95,4%¥,R99 R ¥09,945,359 R ¥09,945,359
af i fawqa s
af wR@ FArH 1,033 4VYUEY 7,03 4RUTY 7,033 URUTY
I faeqa AR, # Tese -
Ifeq Heatda &, (AR ITLHIHAT &) - - -
JAeATEAATE AU AT/ (AT - - -
qfemig AT AT USR] Actuarial JTHT/ (FTeETH) - - -
TME 94T Hedge @ WU ATHI/ (AET) - - -
faxel fafrrwame st ATERT/ (AT
(faserar wer fadi avosiiel weg afeadaare giaa) - - -
ag i@ o faeqa s - - - - - 9,0RUYUBY - §,0,4945% §,0,43945%
T9 AT, HITHAT IS 0% L OY 499 %5R,590 953,930 1R,39,9%= RRO,RR3,R’R RRO,%R3,R%R
I9 ALFHT HYATE FICTH (R99,40R UUY) (3953,939) (RRO,ZR3Z,R) (RRO,ZR3Z,R)
S AT T - i, -
SATHT AT qehTiee - - -
TH SIRIREFEEATS ATSHIE TLTH! ATAILT - -
AT AT ST TRTH 4,500,000,000 (9,%0%,%94,3%0) (%,%9%,3%0) (%,%9%,3%0)
T @ faawer wier - (5%,390,4R%) (5%,390,4%%) (5%,390,4%%)
&l qreE qar faaeor 4,%00,000,000 - - - - (1,%%0,53%,R1%) - (R0,53%,%9%) (R0,53%,%9%)
09 IATATE HATTl FFAT HIeare R4,%00,000,000 B 5, 034,00 BRR¥Y¥ - - Y%, RRR,%0¥ VW0 3¥5 3,333, ¥%0,04% R3,333,¥%0,04%
gife fafaent ST T wiade STEr
faera aimer o=iural 9 @0l AdasT 31eI51 31grarct DGR At doG WRIIG GOIo! cTicioroft SirRft ABR TRATG BRI ool URR A fo1em RBRY ok Rie. #3w RIS
SIREREINERCED yHE FEFE A e ’ EEIEED EEiED SEIEED Sl I RIES RS
Sifgw qar g9 i e
fufa: 0WR10%10% RIS I CE

W FSATSY, AT
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ofolG Uarg fdazor
O HEU R00s 2@ IR AWE 0] FH N AT TR G R o
9 afaeiEae WOe TR YA T faeeTe FUP TR YaE
AT AT 1,595, 433,53% 9,3%%,%45,¥04 AT TS @ - (4,940,000,000)
s q91 q7 AT %5535 9,29%,1% A TR foHlere e AR 1,39%,900,000 -
ATATLT AT - - EIPER I ISR E U SRCEC (¥%,50%,0%%) (R0,339,303)
E S EICE It 200,935 © ¥ RY,¥Y AT TAT ITR faAiEre gTed AT - -
RIENCE] (3¥,29%,09%) (31,230,539) aHT WA @R (R,43%,9¥5) (390,940)
Oob T HHMA G (19,203) (¥3,034) qHG qEl fashtare g SR - -
FHATH @ (194,081 ,99Y) (%3,R¥%,045) T FERT @R - -
Eroikc (39,909,%93) (39,393,433) T qEO fasEre gred R - -
G YA JAT AEAT W qREqT st G=e q,0%%,495,339 1,333,5',30% A ATRTH 0,23 Y51 R0,8%¥,000
TfafaefisTe WOH TR YAw CIGIC I - -
T it TERT SO ge TR q,R5%,909,%3Y% (1,9%¥R,R03,43)
qNG T R (@fg)/FH
U T STHAT T HIoaTd ,40%, 54,938 (4,590,5%0,3%%) focfir witferdiare et TR TEw®
e aar faxi TRATERAT Placements 99,9% ¥ %%5,534 (,40%,3%%,539) B RE R CI | 1] = -
q ATIMH  FFIl - - HOTTAR] Tl - -
% aur faxior oeamerers fusr w0 qar arad - - Subordinated FTcaETATE 9T - -
YEFETATS [GUH wol q4T AT (13,3%%,3%3,9%0) (4,995, 40R,33%) Subordinated ETfcaE®ET WTHTHI - -
a7 gEIieR (RR,%%3,%5Y9) 3,R¥G MUY T SIS gTed - 5,000,000,000
AT Rl (5%,390,43%) -
g A WOE qig/ (FH) IR (3,934,35%) -
% T facfr weaeers fad ata 940,000,000 1,%00,000,000 W UT AT R (%,%9%,3%0) (80,%95,339)
I T dhets fad At - - e wfaferdiare WOt @8 TR YA (R¥,4%9,300) 9,R3%,1%9,5%%
YEederdld Gohed [ad 93%,395 458 19,898, %5
SIREl - - TR T TR @A @ &1 qfa/(Fd) %¥3,5%9,20% (3,950,505 %3%)
E B IR R 43,298,910 4R %3%,459 2085 HET 9§ WIH TG AT TE GEH HQTd %0039 %0¥ ¥ 350,555,330
AT F FHE AR FAET Al A € TR 46 9,5%9,959,4%9 (10,309, ¥ ¥3,30Y) ARAAAT WH AR qAT TE AEH HisaH At @ - -
AR ‘\%jT-FIT-ﬁ (¥¥¥ 093 0%0) (345,953939) afad e dE
FEEA TG I @7 TR Ya6 q, Y43, AL, 98 (10,4%0,33%,3¥R) 0K G FAAAT TE a1 TR qE 3R¥Y,9¥9,40% %00,3R k0¥
fdorr arer s=iural A WT JfdasT 316151 31IIdTet DaRorer af fdorT orer siurer A T Jfdast 31e]51 313rdrct DGR et
BIPERCHERCET THE FEEE At TS BEIEES BIPERCHERCES THE FEEE At e BEIEES
SfEH qaT F=eT SR qaT F=eT
oG URAIG GOICT cfretaroft Siht B WRAIG ADBRY oG URAIG GPICT cfretaroft sieh B WG ADRY
BEINED BEISED BEISED BEINED RIS BEISED
gife fafaerr g Hife fafaerr g
HA Hidere STTER HA Hidere STTER
Aal Ut fgen Ry Ae Ut fgen Ry
AEIE AELEZ v R, 732 RTINS AR RELES o Rie. 73 aRIonS
R RIFEEY
fAfq:  R09_10%10% wn g we wenfaued fHfd: R09_10%10% g we wenfaued

. FISATS, AT ALEE UHGIEH W FISATS, AT AES THGEeH
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oldIc dAT oldic IRE 8.4
(TPH T.)
e Hieard 9400 90,000
T qur fod gxaeenr Wal Hiserd R9,93%,00% 300,358 %0¥%
HIET q@IT Aeq FAATHT ITed gﬁ ThH = -
T 3,943,000 000 300,000 000
STHAT 3,R¥Y,1¥q,40% %00, %O¥
AUTeT I JHAT IBDY AlSGId 8.2
(TPH %)

I ad ald ad

Y AT SHAT T AN ALAdT HioaTd 394 905,303 9,59% %% 0%
T fasft geRiar ager @de afwer frdrres - -
U T FFATE YT gAAiFl THA qA 97T addiew - -

kel 39y 905,303 q,5%R %5,0¥R
d® aon fadi=r Iensxar PLACEMENTS 83
(THH T.)

I ad ald a

el g% dur faio geATERAT MNUHT Placements %29 ,%%Y,3¥ % 95,35 3,¥\%%,059
faeell o qur foxim deaEsAT TRUST Placements - -
A e S AN e 5 -

Rkl LAY RRY, R 15,353, ¥\%,059
DERIVATIVE fddi=I 3udboie< 88
(TPH %)

‘
-

R af

NG FAeEaH aIiT haga
e s Swap - -
sl Swap = -
Forward exchange contract = -
I - -
NGH TR AR RGP
TSl ¥ Swap - -
sl Swap = -
Forward exchange contract = -
I - -
ST - -
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3163 RUIR® AFUdIzE 8.

«

‘

I ad ard ad

~

1
i

T U Sl T - -
@aefl g \raT - -
ECCICIIRIE Y - -

ST
ferdrar TfEwer _ _
frdrr  FRaTer - -

d® aon fadir IRmeEens fGem ool aon aradt 8.

o

I aof ard ad

‘

A AT BTGl AT T - -
AT - -
8.6.9 : NI BRIM! 1Ifol =Iazen TFH )
I ad Ird ad
SET § Tq @WH Ao - -
TG AYRI ATNT & BT ATNT TILTRT ATeT - -
TG AU TN - -
agell qar fmat . -
SHET Aqel@d NUHT ThH , i}
ATeDha0ls [GUd Bl a2 Aarucl 8l
(TPH r.)
Amortized Cost T HTUH XTI ol qdqT AT 94,%%,559,%30 R,3%9,30% 9%
A & FTEEl AT T
aHle® F T U4, 5R%,00% 39,994 %3¢
Tha &F BT ; i}
ge @A 99,%3R,0%9,R9% R9Y URE, LT

FVTPL ®T HTYH WUl &A1 dar qrady - -
o 443,089, R9% R, 45 L ¥E
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8.10.9 : il a2 ATUEID! fAANOT - Ubfdd! 3MERdr TFH T
For fefw
gqrafad Har 93,0%%,953,39% ,9394%%,4%9
gfafaed ot ¥93,939%%5 3%, 2595\%
fo.ame. &1 qar aE &ar - -
ATRITT AT ol , i
EER TS el - -
FAATY FAT 999,%%9, %42 19%,%5% %50
I 3,903,900 000 -
STFT 9¥,%R¥ 3,430 R,RR9,3¥9,0%
qed T S AT TR Y24, %¥0q 49 09%
Esikall 4,5 Y,559R30 R,RR9,30¥,99
8.10.2 : HaIf a2 ATUEID! fARATOT - HGIDY JMER AT TFH T
AT BT 14,52 %,5519,330 3,3%19,30% 91
AR T - -
EIRIEEEDE) - -
EELEEREIL - -
I - _
STFT 94,%R%,559]30 },RR9,30¥ 9\
810.3 : ®ail a2 ATUEId! faveiyor - Fdie! MR @ E.)
g
EEEE EC ikt 999,983,551 99%,9%¥9,94 ¥

@l d% qur foi gRuERsl SuEq - -
ERICEECI LGN BRI - -
seadifee At Swetdl AT - -
frataesr grafead SrTeTdeeel fadrr - -
Hedl e frd - -
e faaraaer fadmr - -

HEITT THTET - -
7 forr QLT3R 9RY,R¥R EA MM TER S
STHAT 94,%RY,558]30 },RR8,30¥ 9\
&SR - -

A%)

A T 1,5 ¥,5519,330 3,339,30% 9%

>
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8.0.8 : Q¥ ERI A4l (TFH %)

‘
g

R ay

TS & BT e

HqEW T WA AR - -
TG AR ATNT & FTEHT ATNT LT TaeT

TG AR T - -
agent aar fear - -
SFHT STer@d TRUH THH - N
faelt womar fafeg & afvd=ar o e g e - -
AV AATAH HIwaTT - -

qyfes & FE SgEe

HET q TT A Aee@ 39,99y R4 ¥ 249, 9R%
Iq TUR] T
T/ (foRdT) 93¥,040,35\9 9%,533,53%
farell gemm faf @ afEdaer &t s g @Ew - -
NG AAT=aH Hioar 9¥Y,5R%,097 39,199% %34
THT &89 79 a0 94Y,5R%,09R 9,004 %%
faduss=an clomell 8.C
(TPH T.)
I ad ard ad
Amortized Cost |T WA TR fIdTaagedT =1 - 9,35%,9¥Y S¥0
FVTOCI| ®T HIY9 WUl fadiaagedr @l - -
ST - 9,35%,9¥Y £¥0

8.C.9: Amortized Cost dAT HATUG AR TP fFAIAUIETAT GloTell

(TPH )

I ad ard a
A frdra - -
IH HITAER - 9,35%,0¥Y S¥O0

T FIHH ol oo - B,
I U ShT T - B}
U U Shdl AT SUHIER - B}

A ;& ETEal AT e - -
STHAT - qr?:i:\g\‘xri\‘o
8.C.2: FVTOCI T dATUd JIRed! fErdiusig==dil clomoit @ E)

I o ard ad

2
‘

i FOET S g - ;
i T gEfd g - ;
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8.¢.3: fdlusian sk e carrell Addetl SeTdRY T T

KT ad

gierdgd WISl FHEIE ITHI - -

‘
2

STFAT - -
dic] B Asudl/GIRRica 8e
(THH ')
R ad ard adf
= T
TG AR AT B FEIA %¥490,000,000 3R%,90%,3%3
g F IRA
TG AR AG L AAA ¥YR YA, 3 30495 353
forTa avEwdl = F aTIed - -
ST IRUN, 943 3¥,093,030
ABRIM BFUdiid clololl 8.90
(TPH &)

I ad aid a

SERT ST - -
A . 8T BER AT g - -
FH T ik @ - -

8.90.9: JRIBd ASRIB HIUGHAT ciolloll

8.90.2: 3IRIRIGA JASRIG BFUCHAHAT clolell

© (TPH ®))
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8.90.3: IPDBI JISRID HIUNEID! TRAT STADRT

(TH9 /)
dom1 Taifdica ufaia
I aof aId ay
Eeail) - -
8.90.8 : JDOD®I JdelRkIb 353:05"353“ %R]aa"' Eltaﬂi'l Zaref (THH ®.)

eI HEOAMT MIATHAT TEH @rdH fewr - -
TG AY AR (AT GIATSURT - -
WEEH FAAAT (AT AEd @R agtaa feer - -
TEE FEIAMA] (AU AEH] @S AT R - -

ST - -
EAfERIC BFuciion clomel 8.99
(THH %)

R ad ard ad

giersga THIEE P AT ) ]
Agagd THIREE He™d HFIAMT . _
SET AT - -
A ST FTHEl AN TEeT - -
THAT AT & - -
8.99.9 : gRima TARRIC BdFu6iaT cTormell )

8.99.2: 3RIRIGA CAIRRIC GFUGHHAT clorroll

13 (TPH ®.)

8.99.3 : JODI RIRRIC GFUIEH®! dR AT SMTBRT
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80 ‘ Tapr arffer ufaereT Ro0we/ 0]

or:®3’'be b3a'%23'20b aRbL2ORR ¥obtab:  bre'=20btb RE2200 R Aeb5eyob  BRYEO:WR - Lbhth Dalbb 2lklle S60x
a3'20d e ovr¥be  02bhaEyh cht'akt® aRE25% b oo2'ban'ar 266'kba%th bed'261b'2b - Iehtk Palbh 2kl 2602
022'h32%2  ax'eorte AR SbrbRRE  rbaardb 260"kt 2'0b arb AR 2l Eab'Ran'bhe - lehth bslbh 2lklle eq02
bak |elbe) B
2%0'0ed2r  bba02%8  2%2%9% b 200'0% % ab2're3 % r2%% 2 bRERERBb b2s'b2s'th - lhtie \ebslbh 2lhlle 602
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M - G S . & A SSOC ia te S & member fim of ASNAF Group & SBC Global Alance

SBC Global
Chartered Accountants e Alliance

Independent Auditor's Report
To The Shareholders’ of Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited.

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of M/s Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited, (hereinafier
referred to as “the Company”) which comprise Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2079
(16" July 2022), Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and summary of significant
accounting policies and explanatory information, together with schedules to the financial statements.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements read together with significant accounting
policies and notes to accounts forming part of accounts present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at Ashad 31, 2079 (16" July 2022), its financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting

AUDIT REPORT Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinio
FI NANCIAL YEAR 2021 -22 We csonodructg:lnt;u:audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Institute of Chartered Accountants’ of Nepal (ICAN) Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that, there are no other key audit
matters to communicate in our report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements,

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of Auditor for the audit of Financials Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole,

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

On the basis of our examination, we further report that:

I. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of audit.

2. In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provision
of Companies Act, 2063 & NRB directives and conform to the books of account of the
company.

3. To the bést of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the company necessary for the purpose of audit, we
have not come across cases where the management group or any employees of the company
have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss or damage to the company; and

4. We did not obtain any information indicating company’s activities which is prejudicial to the
interest of depositors.

5. In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Company has
maintained adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets
in accordance with the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

6. It appears that all the financial and other information and subject matters which is required to
be submitted to the shareholders as per prevalent laws has been provided.

7. We have not come across any action and situation that impair internal control relevant to the
Company's operation and fair presentation of the financial statements.

8. The operation of the Company has been found satisfactory.

Mahesh Kumar Guragain, FCA
Partner

M.G.S & Associates.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2079/06/09
place: Kathmandu, Nepal
UDIN: 220925CA00125R8KhA
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) Contd... STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Amount (In NPR) Amount (In NPR)

NOTE CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR NOTE CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Assets Liabilities
Cash and Cash equivalent 4.1 3,244,141,506 600,279,604 Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 417 1,751,602,740 1,600,043,836
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 375,108,303 1,879,968,042 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 = -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 6,514,665,349 18,283,476,081 Derivative financial instruments 4.19 = -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 o - Deposits from customers 4.20 438,018,457 301,639,888
Other trading assets 45 - - Borrowing 4.21 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 4.6 o - Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 32,571,753 34,072,020
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 15,539,061,919 2,275,528,546 Provisions 4.22 = -
Investment securities 4.8 o 1,286,745,640 Deferred tax liabilities 415 - 1,258,894
Current tax assets 4.9 = - Other liabilities 4.23 306,169,511 84,829,327
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10 - - Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Investment in associates 411 o - Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Investment property 412 - - Total liabilities 2,528,362,461 2,021,843,965
Property and equipment 413 108,689,661 81,762,250
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 6,042,572 7,361,402 Equity
Deferred tax assets 415 144,543 - Share capital 4.26 21,600,000,000 20,000,000,000
Other assets 4.16 73,968,664 8,480,787 Share premium = -
Total Assets 25,861,822,517 24,423,602,352 Retained earnings 946,292,674 1,828,916,824
Reserves 4.27 787,167,382 572,841,563
Total equity attributable to equity holders 23,333,460,056 22,401,758,387
Non-controlling interest = -
Total equity 23,333,460,056 22,401,758,387
Total liabilities and equity 25,861,822,517 24,423,602,352
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 1,304,385,332 162,485,482
Net assets value per share 108.03 112.01

Binaya Nath Neupane
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS

Chandra Prasad Dhakal
DIRECTOR

Suman Pokharel
DIRECTOR

DATE: September 22, 2022
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

Ram Krishna Khatiwada
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Lal Mani Joshi
DIRECTOR

Lima Adhikari
DIRECTOR

Anuj Agarwal
CHAIRMAN

Shankar Prasad Adhikari
DIRECTOR

Kedarnath Sharma
DIRECTOR
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M.G.S. & Associates
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Ram Krishna Khatiwada
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Lal Mani Joshi
DIRECTOR

Lima Adhikari
DIRECTOR
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DIRECTOR
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DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Amount (In NPR)

NOTE CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Interest income 4.29 1,928,826,143 1,362,973,423
Interest expense 4.30 46,018,754 27,063,988
Net interest income 1,882,807,389 1,335,909,435
Fee and commission income 4.31 9,682,318 1,976,213
Fee and commission expense 4.32 51,203 42,035
Net fee and commission income 9,631,115 1,934,178
Net interest, fee and commission income 1,892,438,504 1,337,843,613
Net trading income 4.33 - -
Other operating income 4.34 - -
Total operating income 1,892,438,504 1,337,843,613
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 134,050,387 16,823,829
Net operating income 1,758,388,117 1,321,019,784
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.36 239,868,012 83,782,390
Other operating expenses 4.37 31,601,273 31,272,533
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 23,323,260 15,641,874
Operating Profit 1,463,595,572 1,190,322,987
Non operating income 4.39 200,728 7,425,945
Non operating expense 4.40 100,400 -
Profit before income tax 1,463,695,900 1,197,748,932
Income tax expense 4.41 441,168,316 360,338,560

Current Tax 442,571,753 360,217,822

Deferred Tax (1,403,437) 120,738
Profit for the period 1,022,527,584 837,410,372
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 1,022,527,584 837,410,372

Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the period 1,022,527,584 837,410,372
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 4.95 5.35
Diluted earnings per share 4.95 5.35

Binaya Nath Neupane
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS

Ram Krishna Khatiwada
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Anuj Agarwal

Kedarnath Sharma
DIRECTOR

Lal Mani Joshi

Chandra Prasad Dhakal Shankar Prasad Adhikari
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Suman Pokharel Lima Adhikari
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE: September 22, 2022
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

As per our report of even date

FCA. Mahesh Guragain
Partner
M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Fair value reserve (Investment in equity instrument):
Net change in fair value
Net amount transferred to profit or loss
Net gain (loss) on revalution
Cash flow hedges:
Effective portion of changes in fair value
Net Amount reclassified to profit or loss

Net actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans

“Income Tax relating to all components of Other Comprehensive Income”

“Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax”

NOTE

1,022,527,584

CURRENT YEAR

103

Amount (In NPR)

PREVIOUS YEAR

837,410,372

Total comprehensive income for the period

1,022,527,584

837,410,372

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

1,022,527,584

837,410,372

Total comprehensive income for the period

1,022,527,584

837,410,372

Ram Krishna Khatiwada
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Binaya Nath Neupane
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS

Chandra Prasad Dhakal Lal Mani Joshi
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Suman Pokharel Lima Adhikari
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE: September 22, 2022
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

Anuj Agarwal
CHAIRMAN

Shankar Prasad Adhikari
DIRECTOR

Kedarnath Sharma
DIRECTOR

As per our report of even date

FCA. Mahesh Guragain
Partner
M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) Amount (In NPR)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK

SHARE SHARE GENERAL EXCHANGE REGULATORY FAIR VALUE REVALUATION RETAINED OTHER NON- TOTAL
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVE EQUALISATION RESERVE RESERVE RESERVE EARNING RESERVE CONTROLLING EQUITY
RESERVE INTEREST
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2077 12,000,000,000 - 386,737,498 - 55,647 - - 1,234,371,502 13,661,699 13,634,826,346 - 13,634,826,346
Adjustment/Restatement - - - - - - - - - - -
Adjusted/Restated balance at Shrawan 1, 2077 12,000,000,000 - 386,737,498 - 55,647 - - 1,234,371,502 13,661,699 13,634,826,346 - 13,634,826,346
Comprehensive income for the year -
Profit for the year 837,410,372 837,410,372 - 837,410,372
Other comprehensive income, net of tax -
Fair value reserve (Investment in equity instrument): - -
Net gain (loss) on revalution - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benfit plans - -
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - -
“Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial
assets of foreign operation)” - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - 837,410,372 - 837,410,372 - 837,410,372
Transfer to reserve during the year 167,482,074 1,427 5,698,573 10,603,218 183,785,292 188,785,292
Transfer from reserve during the year (178,085,292) (5,700,000) (1883,785,292) (183,785,292)
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity - -
Share issued 8,000,000,000 (70,478,331) 7,929,521,669 - 7,929,521,669
Share based payments - - -
Dividends to equity holders - - -
Bonus shares issued - - -
Cash dividend paid - - -
Total contributions by and distributions 8,000,000,000 - - - - - - (70,478,331) - 7,929,521,669 - 7,929,521,669
Balance at Ashad end 2078 20,000,000,000 - 554,219,573 - 57,074 - - 1,828,916,824 18,564,917 22,401,758,387 - 22,401,758,387
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2078 20,000,000,000 - 554,219,573 - 57,074 - - 1,828,916,824 18,564,917 22,401,758,387 - 22,401,758,387
Adjustment/Restatement - - - - - - - - - - - -
Adjusted/Restated balance at Shrawan 1, 2078 20,000,000,000 - 554,219,573 - 57,074 - - 1,828,916,824 18,564,917 22,401,758,387 - 22,401,758,387
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year 1,022,527,584 1,022,527,584 - 1,022,527,584
Other comprehensive income, net of tax -
Fair value reserve (Investment in equity instrument) - - -
Net gain (loss) on revalution - - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benfit plans - - -
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - - -
“Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial
assets of foreign operation)” - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - 1,022,527,584 - 1,022,527,584 - 1,022,527,584
Transfer to reserve during the year 204,505,517 682,870 3,183,737 12,321,168 220,693,292 220,693,292
Transfer from reserve during the year (217,509,555) (3,183,737) (220,693,292) (220,693,292)
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity - -
Share issued - -
Share based payments - - -
Dividends to equity holders - - -
Bonus shares issued 1,600,000,000 (1,606,615,390) (6,615,390) (6,615,390)
Cash dividend paid - (84,210,526) (84,210,526) (84,210,526)
Total contributions by and distributions 1,600,000,000 - - - - - - (1,690,825,916) - (90,825,916) - (90,825,916)
Balance at Ashad end 2079 21,600,000,000 - 758,725,090 - 739,944 - - 946,292,674 27,702,348 23,333,460,056 - 23,333,460,056
As per our report of even date
Binaya Nath Neupane Ram Krishna Khatiwada Anuj Agarwal Kedarnath Sharma Chandra Prasad Dhakal Lal Mani Joshi Shankar Prasad Adhikari Suman Pokharel Lima Adhikari FCA. Mahesh Guragain
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Partner

DATE: September 22, 2022
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) Contd... STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Amount (In NPR)

PREVIOUS YEAR

Amount (In NPR)

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1,878,522,839 1,329,958,405 Purchase of investment securities - (1,150,000,000)

Fees and other income received 9,682,318 1,976,213 Receipts from sale of investment securities 1,272,700,000 -
Dividend received - - Purchase of property and equipment (46,806,094) (20,337,203)
Receipts from other operating activities 200,728 7,425,945 Receipt from the sale of property and equipment = -
Interest paid (34,975,014) (21,930,631) Purchase of intangible assets (2,125,748) (310,750)
Commission and fees paid (51,203) (42,035) Receipt from the sale of intangible assets - -
Cash payment to employees (75,099,774) (63,244,058) Purchase of investment properties - -
Other expense paid (31,701,673) (31,272,533) Receipt from the sale of investment properties - -
“Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities” 1,746,578,221 1,222,871,306 Interest received 60,939,467 20,744,000

Dividend received - -
1,284,707,625 (1,149,903,953)

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets Net cash used in investing activities

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 1,504,859,739 (1,870,840,269)
11,764,668,835 (9,502,365,821)

Other trading assets = -

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities - -

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - - Repayment of debt securities - -

Loans and advances to customers (13,396,993,790) (1,718,502,339) Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities - -
Other assets (59,623,687) 3,248,567 Repayment of subordinated liabilities - -
Receipt from issue of shares - 8,000,000,000
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities Dividend paid (84,210,526) -
Due to bank and financial institutions 150,000,000 1,600,000,000 Interest paid (3,735,384) -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - Other receipt/payment (6,615,390) (70,478,331)
Deposit from customers 136,378,569 51,619,768 Net cash from financing activities (94,561,300) 7,929,521,669
Borrowings o -
Other liabilities 51,919,710 12,525,581 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,643,861,902 (3,780,608,626)
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 1,897,787,597 (10,201,443,207) Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2078 600,279,604 4,380,888,230
Income taxes paid (444,072,020) (358,783,135) “Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held” -
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,453,715,577 (10,560,226,342) Cash and cash equivalents at Ashad end 2079 3,244,141,506 600,279,604
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Chandra Prasad Dhakal Lal Mani Joshi Shankar Prasad Adhikari
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Suman Pokharel Lima Adhikari
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT Amount (In NPR)
Cash in hand 7,500 10,000
Balances with B/Fls 91,134,006 300,269,604
Money at call and short notice - -
Other 3,153,000,000 300,000,000
Total 3,244,141,506 600,279,604

4.2

DUE FROM NEPAL RASTRA BANK Amount (in PRy

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Statutory balances with NRB 375,108,303 1,879,968,042
Securities purchased under resale agreement - -

Other deposit and receivable from NRB - -

Total 375,108,303 1,879,968,042
PLACEMENTS WITH BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Amount (In nglg

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Placement with domestic B/Fls 6,514,665,349 18,283,476,081
Placement with foreign B/Fls = -

Less: Allowances for impairment = -

Total 6,514,665,349 18,283,476,081
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Amount (In NI‘;'I.R‘;

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Held for trading
Interest rate swap o -
Currency swap = -
Forward exchange contract = -
Others o -

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap o -
Currency swap = -
Forward exchange contract - -
Other - -

Total - -
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OTHER TRADING ASSETS 4.5

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Treasury bills o -
Government bonds = -
NRB Bonds - -
Domestic Corporate bonds o -
Equities - -
Other o -
Total - -
Pledged - -
Non-pledged o -

LOAN AND ADVANCES TO B/Fis 4.6

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Loans to microfinance institutions o R
Other o -
Less: Allowances for impairment = -
Total = -

4.6.1 ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Balance at Shrawan 1 o R
Impairment loss for the year: = -
Charge for the year - R
Recoveries/reversal o -
Amount written off o -

Balance at Ashad end - -

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 4.7
Amount (In NPR)
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 15,694,887,930 2,297,304,171
Less: Impairment allowances
Collective impairment 155,826,012 21,775,625
Individual impairment - -
Net amount 15,539,061,919 2,275,528,546

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - N
Total 15,539,061,919 2,275,528,546
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4.7.1 ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES - BY PRODUCT

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Product
Term loans
Overdraft
Trust receipt/Import loans
Demand and other working capital loans
Personal residential loans
Real estate loans
Margin lending loans
Hire purchase loans
Deprived sector loans
Bills purchased
Staff loans
Other

12,066,163,372 2,137,594,541
413,737,698 39,967,876

111,691,459 119,684,680
3,102,700,000 -

Sub total

Interest receivable

15,694,292,530 2,297,247,097
595,401 57,074

Grand total

15,694,887,930 2,297,304,171

4.7.2 ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES - BY CURRENCY

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese yuan
Other

15,694,887,930 2,297,304,171

Total

15,694,887,930 2,297,304,171

4.7.3 ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES - BY COLLATERAL

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Secured
Movable/immovable assets
Gold and silver
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls
Government guarantee
Guarantee of international rated bank
Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Collateral of Governement securities
Counter guarantee
Personal guarantee

Other collateral

111,762,682 119,741,754

15,583,125,249 2,177,562,417

Subtotal

Unsecured

15,694,887,930 2,297,304,171

Grant Total

15,694,887,930 2,297,304,171

4.7.4 ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT
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Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 21,775,625 4,951,796
Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge/(reversal) for the year 134,050,387 16,823,829
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -
Other movement - -
Balance at Ashad end 155,826,012 21,775,625
Total allowances for impairment 155,826,012 21,775,625
INVESTMENT SECURITIES 4.8
Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

- 1,286,745,640

Total

- 1,286,745,640

4.8.1 INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: Specific allowances for impairment

= 1,286,745,640

Total

- 1,286,745,640

4.8.2 INVESTMENT IN EQUITY MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities

Total
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4.8.3 INFORMATION RELATING TO INVESTMENT IN EQUITIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Investment in quoted equity = -
Investment in unquoted equity - -
Total - -

4.9
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

CURRENT TAX ASSETS / LIABILITIES

Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 410,000,000 326,106,263
Tax assets of prior periods - -

Current tax liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities 442 571,753 360,178,283
Tax liabilities of prior periods - -
Total 32,571,753 34,072,020
4.10
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES Amount (n HAS

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -

Investment in unquoted subsidiaries = -

Total investment o -

Less: Impairment allowances - -

Net carrying amount - -

4.10.1 INVESTMENT IN QUOTED SUBSIDIARIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -

4.10.2 INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED SUBSIDIARIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -
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4.10.3 INFORMATION RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES OF THE BANK
Amount (In NPR)

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP HELD
BY THE BANK

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -

4.10.4 NON CONTROLLING INTEREST OF THE SUBSIDIARIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Equity interest held by NCI (%) - -
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year - -
Accumulated balances of NCl as on Ashad end........ - -
Dividend paid to NCI - -
Total = -

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

4.11
Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Investment in Quoted Associates @ -
Investment in Unquoted Associates = -

Total investment o -

Less: Impairment Allowances - -

Net Carrying Amount = -

4.11.1 INVESTMENT IN QUOTED ASSOCIATES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -

4.11.2 INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED ASSOCIATES

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -

4.11.3 INFORMATION RELATING TO ASSOCIATES OF THE BANK
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 4.14 DEFERRED TAX 4.15
Amount (In NPR) Amount (In NPR)

PARTICULARS GOODWILL SOFTWARE OTHER TOTAL ASHAD TOTAL ASHAD CURRENT YEAR
PURCHASED DEVELOPED END 2079 END 2078 DEFERRED DEFERRED NET DEFERRED TAX

TAX ASSETS TAX LIABILITIES (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

Cost

As on Shrawan 1, 2077 - 15,618,700 - - - 15,618,700 Deferred tax on temporory differences on following items-

Addition during the Year - - Loan and Advance to B/Fls -
Acquisition - 310,750 - - - 310,750 Loans and advances to customers -
Capitalization - - Investment properties -

Disposal during the year - - Investment securities -

Adjustment/Revaluation - - Property & equipment - 14,582,338 14,582,338

Balance as on Ashad end 2078 - 15,929,450 - - - 15,929,450 Employees, defined benefit plan - - -

Leases 11,772,294 - (11,772,294)

Addition during the Year - - Provisions - - -
Acquisition - 2,125,748 - - 2,125,748 - Other temporory differences 2,954,587 - (2,954,587)
Capitalization - - Deferred tax on temporory differences 14,726,881 14,582,338 (144,543)

Disposal during the year - - Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -

Adjustment/Revaluation - - Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -

Balance as on Ashad end 2079 - 18,055,198 - - 18,055,198 15,929,450 Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Ashad end 2079 (144,543)

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2078 1,258,894

Amortization and Impairment Origination/(Reversal) during the year (1,403,437)

As on Shrawan 1, 2077 - 4,789,391 - - - 4,789,391 —_—

Amortization charge for the Year . 3,778,657 - - - 3,778,657 : . . i

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss (1,403,437)

Impairment for the year - - . . . L
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income

Disposals - )
P Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity

Adjustment - -
As on Ashad end 2078 - 8,568,048 - - - 8,568,048

Amortization charge for the Year 3,444,578 3,444,578 - DEFERRED
TAX ASSETS

Impairment for the year - -

Disposals - ) Deferred tax on temporory differences on following items

Adjustment - - Loan and Advance to B/Fls
As on Ashad end 2079 12,012,626 12,012,626 8,568,048

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

DEFERRED
TAX LIABILITIES

PREVIOUS YEAR

NET DEFERRED TAX
(ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

Capital Work in Progress B B B Investment securities -
Net Book Value Property & equipment - 4,970,746 4,970,746
As on Ashad end 2077 - 10,829,309 - - 10,829,309 14,599,102 Employees, defined benefit plan ) ; )
As on Ashad end 2078 - 7,361,402 R - 7,361,402 10,829,309 Leases 1,068,708 - (1,068,708)
As on Ashad end 2079 - 6,042,571 - - 6,042,572 7,361,402 Provisions ) ) -
Other temporory differences 2,643,143 - (2,643,143)

Deferred tax on temporory differences 3,711,851 4,970,746 1,258,894

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -

Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Ashad end 2078 1,258,894

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2077 1,138,156

Origination/(Reversal) during the year 120,738

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss 120,738

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity
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OTHER ASSETS 4.16

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Assets held for sale o R
Other non banking assets - -
Bills receivable o -

Accounts receivable 39,977 23,550
Accrued income 5,915,833 -
Prepayments and deposit 2,787,549 1,228,029
Income tax deposit 4,228,354 -
Deferred employee expenditure 6,655,693 6,707,337
Others

Advance to Nepal Warehousing Co. Ltd. 50,000,000 -

Others 4,341,258 521,871
Total 73,968,664 8,480,787
DUE TO BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Amount (in ;;;)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Money market deposits - -
Interbank borrowing 1,751,602,740 1,600,043,836
Other deposits from BFls - -
Settlement and clearing accounts = -
Other deposits from BFls = .

Total 1,751,602,740 1,600,043,836
DUE TO NEPAL RASTRA BANK 4.18
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Refinance from NRB - -
Standing Liquidity Facility - -
Lender of last report facility from NRB - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - -
Other payable to NRB - -
Total - -

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4.19

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Held For Trading
Interest Rate Swap - -
Currency Swap = -
Forward Exchange Contract - -
Others = -
Held For Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap = -
Currency Swap - -
Forward Exchange Contract - -
Other - -

Total - -
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DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 4.20

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Institutions Customers:

Term Deposits 250,000,000 250,000,000
Call Deposits - -
Current Deposits 188,018,457 51,639,888
Others - -

Individual Customers:
Term Deposits - -
Saving Deposits = -
Current Deposits = -
Other - -
Total 438,018,457 301,639,888

4.20.1 CURRENCY WISE ANALYSIS OF DEPOSIT FROM CUSTOMERS

Amount (In NPR)

Nepalese Rupee 438,018,457 301,639,888
Indian Rupee - -

United State Dollar o R
Great Britain Pound o R
Euro 5 -
Japenese Yen - -

Chinese Yuan - R

Other - -
Total 438,018,457 301,639,888
BORROWING 4.21

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government - R
Other Institutions = -
Other S R
Sub total o -

Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Banks - -
Other Institutions - -
Sub total - -
Total - -
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PROVISIONS

4.22
Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Provisions For Redundancy = -
Provision For Restructuring = -
Pending Legal Issues And Tax Litigation - -
Onerous Contracts = -
Other = -
Total = -

4.22.1 MOVEMENT IN PROVISION
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Balance at Shrawan 1 c -
Provisions made during the year - -
Provisions used during the year - -
Provisions Reversed during the year = -

Unwind of Discount - -

Balance at Ashad end - -

OTHER LIABILITIES 4.23

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations - -
Liability for long-service leave 5,296,911 4,691,669
Short-term employee benefits - -

Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 5,185,727 1,562,041
Interest payable on deposit 5,749,453 5,089,521

Interest payable on borrowing - -
Liabilities on defered grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under Finance Lease - -

Employee bonus payable 162,632,878 13,919,313
Other - -
Unearned Income 75,866,079 43,518,563
TDS & VAT Payables 3,277,889 2,690,351
Lease Liability 43,461,621 3,562,362
Others 4,698,954 9,795,508
Total 306,169,511 84,829,327

4.23.1 DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets = -
Present value of net obligations - -
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations - -
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4.23.2 PLAN ASSETS

Plan assets comprise
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Equity Securities - -
Government Bonds - -
Bank deposit - -
Other - -
Total - -

Actual return on plan assets

4.23.3 MOVEMENT IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 = -
Actuarial losses o -
Benefits paid by the plan o -
Current service costs and interest - -

Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end - -

4.23.4 MOVEMENT IN THE FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 - -
Contributions paid into the plan - -
Benefits paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - -

Expected return on plan assets - -

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end - -

4.23.5 AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Current service costs - -
Interest on obligation = -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Total - -

4.23.6 AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Acturial (gain)/loss = -
Total = -
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4.23.7 ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Discount rate 1% 9%

Expected return on plan asset - -

Future salary increase 7% 6%

Withdrawal rate 7% 7%
DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED 4.24
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - -
Total - -

SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES 4.25

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component) - -
Other - -
Total = -

SHARE CAPITAL 4.26

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Ordinary shares 21,600,000,000 20,000,000,000
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only)

Perpetual debt (equity component only) - -
Total 21,600,000,000 20,000,000,000

4.26.1 ORDINARY SHARES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Authorized Capital

400,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000
Issued Capital

216,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 21,600,000,000 20,000,000,000
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

216,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 21,600,000,000 20,000,000,000
Total 21,600,000,000 20,000,000,000
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4.26.2 ORDINARY SHARE OWNERSHIP
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

PERCENT AMOUNT PERCENT AMOUNT

Domestic Ownership

Nepal Government 10.00% 2,160,000,000 10.00% 2,000,000,000
“A” class licensed institutions 20.89% 4,512,564,000 20.89% 4,178,300,000
Other licensed intitutions 0.05% 10,800,000 0.05% 10,000,000
Other Institutions 18.97% 4,097,736,000 18.97% 3,794,200,000
Public 40.00% 8,640,000,000 40.00% 8,000,000,000
Other 10.09% 2,178,900,000 10.09% 2,017,500,000
Foreign ownership - -
Total 100% 21,600,000,000 100% 20,000,000,000
RESERVES 4.27
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Statutory general reserve 758,725,090 554,219,572
Exchange equilisation reserve = -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 25,041,610 15,641,334
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 739,944 57,074
Investment adjustment reserve - -
Capital reserve - -
Assets revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve = -
Dividend equalisation reserve - -
Actuarial gain - -
Special reserve - -

Other reserve

Staff Training Fund 2,660,738 2,923,583

Total 787,167,382 572,841,563
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 4.28
Amount (In NPR)

Contingent liabilities 518,461,352 162,453,357

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 769,010,568 32,124

Capital commitment = R
Lease Commitment 5 R
Litigation 16,913,412 -
Total 1,304,385,332 162,485,482

4.28.1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Acceptance and documentary credit 515,461,352 162,453,357
Bills for collection - -
Forward exchange contracts - -
Guarantees 3,000,000 -
Underwriting commitment = -
Other commitments - -
Total 518,461,352 162,453,357
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4.28.2 UNDRAWN AND UNDISBURSED FACILITIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Undisbursed amount of loans - -

Undrawn limits of overdrafts 10,362,302 32,124
Undrawn limits of letter of credit 758,648,266 -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - -
Total 769,010,568 32,124

4.28.3 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub total - -
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub total - -
Total - -

4.28.4 LEASE COMMITMENTS
Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease,

where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year o -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years o -
Later than 5 years - -

Sub total - -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable finance lease,
where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year ° -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years = -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub total - -
Grand total - -

4.28.5 LITIGATION

The Bank is in dispute with Large Taxpayers Office (LTO) over additional tax demanded by LTO over and above the amount declared by the Bank.
The case relates to tax return filed by the Bank under self-assessment system for FY 2074/75, which is under Administrative Review as per the

Income Tax Act of Nepal.

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Contingent Liabilities on Taxes 16,913,412 -
Total 16,913,412 -
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INTEREST INCOME 4.29

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Cash and cash equivalent o R

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Placement with bank and financial institutions 1,066,027,694 1,220,960,021
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 801,332,406 98,672,402
Investment securities 52,809,660 33,596,656
Loan and advances to staff 8,656,383 9,744,344
Other - -
Total interest income 1,928,826,143 1,362,973,423
INTEREST EXPENSE 4.30
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers 23,564,387 23,500,003
Borrowing 18,718,984 3,563,985
Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other 3,735,384 -
Total interest expense 46,018,754 27,063,988
FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME 4.31
Amount (In NPR)
Loan administration fees 850,000 200,000
Service fees 4,430,420 1,125,995

Consortium fees - -
Commitment fees - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees - -
Prepayment and swap fees - -
Investment banking fees = -
Asset management fees - -
Brokerage fees - -
Remittance fees = -
Commission on letter of credit 4,365,163 649,813
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 30,000 -
Commission on share underwriting/issue - -
Locker rental - -
Other fees and commission income 6,735 405
Total fees and Commission Income 9,682,318 1,976,213
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FEES AND COMMISSION EXPENSE 4.32

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees 1,507 17,750

Remittance fees and commission - -

Other fees and commission expense 49,696 24,285

Total fees and Commission Expense 51,203 42,035

NET TRADING INCOME 4.33
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Changes in fair value of trading assets = -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets = -
Interest income on trading assets = -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange translation - -
Other = -
Net trading income o -

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 4.34

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Foreign exchange revaluation gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities = -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties = -
Dividend on equity instruments - -
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income = -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Locker rent = -
Other - -
Total = -

IMPAIRMENT CHARGE/(REVERSAL) FOR LOAN AND OTHER LOSSES 4.35

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 134,050,387 16,823,829

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

(
(
(
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total 134,050,387 16,823,829
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PERSONNEL EXPENSE 4.36

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Salary 25,025,972 24,368,217
Allowances 39,763,200 33,827,308
Gratuity expense 1,535,516 1,573,616
Provident fund 1,847,120 1,886,821
Uniform - -
Training & development expense 2,358,737 52,834
Leave encashment 4,808,373 4,626,094
Medical - -
Insurance 152,257 152,902
Employees incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRS 1,097,214 3,130,991
Other expenses related to staff 646,745 244,294
Subtotal 77,235,135 69,863,077
Employees bonus 162,632,878 13,919,313
Grand total 239,868,012 83,782,390

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE 4.37

Amount (In NPR)

Directors’ fee 1,070,000 1,102,000
Directors’ expense 298,070 267,696
Auditors’ remuneration 339,000 226,000
Other audit related expense - -
Professional and legal expense 4,965,963 465,286
Office administration expense 22,881,070 13,637,188
Operating lease expense - 9,223,405
Operating expense of investment properties o -
Corporate social responsibility expense 825,000 5,700,000
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other 1,222,170 650,958
Total 31,601,273 31,272,533
DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION 4.38
Amount (In NPR)
Depreciation on property and equipment 19,878,683 11,863,217
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,444,578 3,778,657
Total 23,323,260 15,641,874
NON OPERATING INCOME 4.39
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Recovery of loan written off - -
Other income 200,728 7,425,945
Total 200,728 7,425,945
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NON OPERATING EXPENSE 4.40

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Loan written off - -

Redundancy provision = -

Expense of restructuring = -

Other expense 100,400 -
Total 100,400 -
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 4.41

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Current tax expense

Current year 442,571,753 360,178,283
Adjustments for prior years = 39,539
Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,403,437) 120,738
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 441,168,316 360,338,560

4.41.1 RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT
Amount (In NPR)

Profit before tax 1,463,695,900 1,197,748,932
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 439,108,770 359,324,680
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 1,857,962 1,381,084

Less: Tax effect on exempt income - -

Less: Tax effect on other items

Tax effect on excess depreciation as per Income Tax Act (1,605,020) 527,481
Deferred tax (expense)/income 1,403,437 (120,738)
Others - (39,539)
Total income tax expense 441,168,316 360,338,560

Effective tax rate 30% 30%

STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
(As per NRB Regulation)
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Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Opening Retained Earning

1,828,916,824

1,234,371,502

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 1,022,527,584 837,410,372
Appropriations:
a. General reserve (204,505,517) (167,482,074)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund = -
c. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (10,225,276) (8,374,104)
e. Employees’ training fund (2,095,892) (2,229,114)
f. Other
Bonus Share (1,600,000,000) -
Cash Dividend (84,210,526) -
Share Issue Cost (6,615,390) (70,478,331)
Writeback from CSR Fund 825,000 5,700,000
Writeback from STF 2,358,737 -
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 946,975,544 1,828,918,251
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (538,327) (1,427)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -
¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) - -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) - -
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (144,543) -
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - -
i. Other (+/-) - -
Distributable profit or (loss) 946,292,674 1,828,916,824
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1. Reporting Entity
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Bank”) is a public limited company incorporated on June
8, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2063 of Nepal. The bank
is licensed as a National level Infrastructure Development
Bank by Nepal Rastra Bank (the Central Bank of Nepal) and
has been in operation since March 6, 2019. It’s registered
office is at Kathmandu-10, Nepal. The Bank’s ordinary

shares are listed in the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited.

Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS), as published by Accounting Standard Board
(ASB), Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), on going concern basis and in

the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements
The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on the
Nepalese calendar. Reporting Period is a period from the
first day of Shrawan of any year to the last day of Ashad
of the next year. The corresponding dates for the English

calendar are as follows:

Relevant Nepalese English

Financial Calendar Calendar

Statement
Comparative SFP Date 31 Ashadh 2078 15 July 2021
Comparative Reporting 1 Shrawan 2077- 16 July 2020 -
Period 31 Ashadh 2078 15 July 2021
SFP date 32 Ashadh 2079 16 July 2022
1 Shrawan 2078 - 16 July 2021 -
32 Ashadh 2079 16 July 2022

Reporting Period

The financial statements have been approved and authorized
for issue by the board of directors as per its decision dated
September 22, 2022 and have recommended for its approval

at the Annual General Meeting.

Comparative reporting period figures have been restated/
reclassified wherever necessary by the standards/

regulations and/or for better presentation.
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Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee
(NPR), which is the Bank's functional currency. The figures
are rounded to nearest integer, except otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS
requires the Bank’s management to make critical judgments,
estimates and assumptions such that could potentially have
a material impact on the reported financial figures. These
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported

amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

On an ongoing basis the management reviews these
estimates and underlying assumptions to ensure that
they continue to be relevant and reasonable. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

The most significant areas of assumptions and estimation
applied in the application of accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the financial statements are listed hereinafter and their

description follows:

Going Concern

Fair value of financial instruments

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Useful economic life of property and equipment
Taxation and deferred tax

Provisions for liabilities and contingencies

Changes in accounting policies
There are no any significant changes in accounting policies

during the period.

New Standards in Issue but Not Yet Effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32-
Financial Instruments: Presentation, NAS 39- Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurements and NFRS
7- Financial Instruments: Disclosures have been applied.
NRFS 9- Financial Instruments has been complied for the

classification of Financial Instruments.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing
standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after
the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.
Those become applicable when ASB, Nepal incorporates
them within NFRS.
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2.7

2.8

New standards and interpretations not adopted

All the standards along with carve outs, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) have
been incorporated.

Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities
are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is

material.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Measurement

The assets and liabilities reported in the financial
statements of the Bank are prepared following the
accrual method of accounting and the historical cost

basis, except where otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Bank. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, together
with the fair value of any contingent consideration
payable. The excess of the cost of acquisition over
the fair value of the Bank’s share of the identifiable net
assets and contingent liabilities acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets and contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly

in the income statement.

The Bank does not have any subsidiary as on the
reporting date.

Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
Non-controlling interests are measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate

share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities, including structured entities,
which the Bank controls. The Bank controls an entity
when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee.
The assessment of power is based on the Bank’s
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity
unilaterally for the Banks’s own benefit and is subject to

reassessment if and when one or more of the elements
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of control change. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which the Bank effectively obtains control. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases, and
where any interest in the subsidiary remains, this is re-
measured to its fair value and the change in carrying amount

is recognized in the income statement.

Loss of Control:
Bank does not have any subsidiary, hence not applicable to
the bank.

Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

A special purpose entity is an entity that has been designed
so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in
deciding who controls the entity. Contractual arrangements
determine the rights and therefore relevant activities of the
special purpose entity. Special purpose entities are generally
created to achieve a narrow and well-defined objective with
restrictions around their activities. Special purpose entities
are consolidated when the substance of the relationship
between the Bank and the special purpose entity indicates
the Bank has power over the contractual relevant activities of
the special purpose entity, is exposed to variable returns, and

can use that power to affect the variable return exposure.

The Bank does not have any special purpose entity as on the

reporting date.

f. Transaction Elimination on Consolidation

3.3

The Bank does not have any subsidiary, hence no
consolidation of financial statements and resulting

transactions elimination.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the total amount
of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial
institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months
or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used
by the licensed institution in the management of its short-

term commitments.

Explanatory Notes

Other in Cash and cash equivalent comprises of:
Investment with original maturities of up to 3 months: NPR
3,153,000,000.
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3.4 Financial assets and Financial Liabilities

3.4.1 Recognition
The Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial
liability in its statement of financial position when, and only
when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Bank initially recognize loans and advances,
deposits; and debt securities/subordinated liabilities issued
on the date that they are originated which is the date that
the Bank becomes party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture,
Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction,
reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade
date at which the Bank commits to purchase/acquire the
financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial
assets are recognized on trade date (the date on which the

Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset).

3.4.2 Classification

A. Financial Assets
The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the
Bank’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial

assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Bank classifies a financial asset measured at amortized
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Explanatory Notes

Financial Assets measured at amortized cost reported as at
32 Asadh 2079:

Amount (NPR
in ‘000’)

Cash in hand 8
Balances with B/FIs 91,134
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 375,108
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 9,667,665
Loans and advances to Customers 15,539,274
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Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions and Loans
and advances to Customers comprise Interest receivable
amounting NPR 5,423,488 and NPR 595,401 respectively.

Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized
cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured
at fair value are further classified into two categories as

below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair
value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

As at the reporting date, the Bank does not have any financial

assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading
and at the initial recognition, the Bank makes an irrevocable
election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the
instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive
income are classified as financial assets at fair value though
other comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes in fair value are

recognized in other comprehensive income.

As at the reporting date, the Bank does not have any financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI).

Financial Liabilities
The Bank classifies the financial liabilities as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition
are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized in Statement
of Profit or Loss.
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As at the reporting date, the Bank does not have financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value
though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured
at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Explanatory Notes
As at the reporting date, the bank’s financial liabilities are

measured at amortized cost as below:

Amount (NPR
in ‘000°)

Deposits from customers 438,018

Due to BFls 1,751,603

Deposits from customers comprise deposits of Borrowers
held in current/escrow accounts. Due to BFls comprise Inter-

Bank Borrowing of 7 days.

3.4.3 Measurement

Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its

acquisition or issue.

Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement

of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently
measured either at fair value or at amortized cost based on
the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial
asset or liability classified as measured at amortized cost
is subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective
interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is
the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for

impairment or un-collectability.
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The Bank has applied NFRS 9 — “Financial Instruments”
in the classification and measurement of its financial

instruments.

3.4.4 Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participant at the measurement date.
The determination of fair value has been done as per the

framework laid down in NFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’.

3.4.5 Impairment of Financial Assets/liabilities

The Bank, at the end of each reporting period, assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated.

It may not be possible to identify a single, discrete event
that caused the impairment. Rather the combined effect of
several events may have caused the impairment. Objective
evidence impairment includes observable data such as

following:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization;

where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group
of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the bank, including adverse
changes in repayment patterns or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

3.4.5.1 Impairment charge / (reversal and write off)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of
the loss is recognized in profit or loss. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced through the use of an impairment
allowance account. Subsequent reversal of impairment

loss, due to factors such as an improvement in the debtor’s
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credit rating, is recognized in profit or loss. The reversal shall
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that
exceeds what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized at the date the impairment

is reversed.

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowance
accounts) are written off either partially or in full, when there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where financial assets
are secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceed

from the realization of security.

3.4.5.2 Loan loss provision to be determined as prescribed in
directive no. 02/75 of NRB.
There is a Carve out from the requirement to determine
impairment loss on financial assets — loans and advances
by adopting the ‘Incurred Loss Model’ as specified in para 63
of NAS 39 unless the reporting entity is a bank or a financial
institution registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions
Act, 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss on
loans and advances at the higher of

B amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank for loan loss provisioning; and

B amount determined as per para 63 of NAS 39 adopting

Incurred Loss Model.

Explanatory Notes

The Bank does not have any financial assets that have been
impaired in the current reporting period and thus Impairment
on Loan & Advances has been recorded as per norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for Loan Loss Provisioning

in the current financial year as given below:
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Amount (In NPR)

Opening 21,775,625
Additional during the year 134,201,011

Impairment Charge for Loan to Customers (as per NAS 39) -

Loan Outstanding as on 16.07.2022 15,582,601,070

1% of Outstanding Loan (as per NRB Directive) 155,826,011

Higher of amount determined as per NRB Directive and NAS 39 155,826,011

Opening LLP (21,775,625)

Writeback during the year 150,624
Writeback during the year (150,624)
Closing 155,826,012

Y RE  FE 3.5 Trading Assets
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3.6

3.7

a)

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities
that the Bank acquires or incurs principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as part
of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or

position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized at
fair value and subsequently measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position, with transaction costs
recognized in profit or loss. All changes in fair value are
recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss as

regarded as fair value through profit & loss account.

Explanatory Notes
The Bank does not have any trading assets as on the

reporting date.

Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include
all derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified
as trading assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk
management purposes are measured at fair value in the

statement of financial position.

Explanatory Notes
The Bank does not have any derivative liabilities as on the

reporting date.

Property and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the assets will
flow to the Bank and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured. The cost includes expenditures that are directly

attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-
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b)

c)

constructed assets includes followings:

Cost of materials and direct labor;

Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to
the working condition for their intended use; and
Capitalized borrowing cost

Property and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss if any. Neither class of the property and equipment
are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value
measured at the reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that
the future economic benefits from the expenditure will flow
to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the
assets in working condition are expensed as incurred.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property
and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

During the reporting period, the Bank has not derecognized

any assets.

Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost. These are expenses
of a capital nature directly incurred in the construction of

buildings, awaiting capitalization.

As at the reporting date, the Bank does not have any Capital

work in progress.

Depreciation

Property and equipment’s are depreciated from the date they
are available for use on property on straight-line method over
estimated useful lives as determined by the Management.
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. Leased assets
under the finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their useful life. Land is not depreciated.
Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the
date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is

derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property

and equipment for current year are as follows:
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Leasehold Building 10 Years
Furniture and fixtures
Furniture and fixtures used in meeting halls 8 Years
Furniture and fixtures- Others 10 Years

Computers & Accessories

Servers & Networks 6 Years
Others 3 years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Electrical Installations & Equipment 10 Years

Vehicles/Motorcycles

Car, Bus 8 Years
Motorcycle 10 Years
Machinery 15 Years
Intangibles 5 Years (or as
per Agreement)

Assets costing less than NPR 10,000 are fully depreciated in
the year of purchase. For assets purchased/sold during the
year, depreciation is provided upto the date of use on pro-

rata basis.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are

reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if any.

3.8 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the residual of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets and
contingents acquired. Goodwill represents those intangibles
that are not identifiable. Goodwill is allocated to a cash-
generating unit (CGU), which may be larger than the
entity acquired, and is not amortized. It is assessed for
impairment on an annual basis by comparing the present
value of the expected cash flows generated by the CGU to
the carrying value of the net assets of that CGU (including
the goodwill). To the extent impairment is identified,

this is charged to the income statement at that time.

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which
reflects market expectations of the probability that the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Bank,

and are amortized on the basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer Software
The intangible assets of the Bank include computer software
purchased by the Bank. Software is measured at cost less

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss



Tapr arffer ufaereT Ro0we/ 0]

THAAT HIYT TRUH g | GREIIETS  straight
line STETRHT JUARYA ATIHT  amortization LT
g | AW AT AT TG AT T JAACHS AT
AT i 9 a7 GERET THINH @ g | aiEET
forefl efgaTia g qAT 99 WA GoF GoAF Fiqdad
fafar gauEerET iy T @ afEdd wua
FEIHT qHENA g |

3. T AT

T qEART AT R qER g I o ATkl
EEEIUER G CA N CICHE SR C IS R Gl
FIET 3 AT AR I T ILeAA TR § |
T ggH (e Sl AT He FET Ve |
A gEafdes JFTHT PREAR @9 dledel ard
FAH] @EA g | qaqeE qFqO A
wvafd (rmare fon Sfad weaw wmw iy A
Sfed Hea [RaiROr 9 HHAT ATHN AT BTET WU
TIEUAT A ATHT a7 BTET ATRl a1 A€ eor
AGIEHA Mg | A FHIAT TR g &1 3
HA A Togd 991 PR Afch (= Jiqaed
fufel oG @™ 9FER e FErr
FEOAl WA Aiebd Fed & |

fereqer ot
aq Sl gfdaen fafaar # gera @ gt

g0

3.90 f89, | T Subordinated IRICAET

F. fag

bl TMEHATRRaTE AEH FaT EH T T
g | I (AT Sebel AP TIAT @S TG

T T UEFERAS  [qudiel THHEH  Fiarrded
g |

g B R e

I FHEY TG | GEAT S T | g
ST Feuwr aed YW FREAR @9 wes
e g ¥ 9ty TNl ST &Rl YA T
Amortized FRTTHT AUA ey | Yiqaed  fafawr
FHET AT A TH AT G |

Subordinated 3TRER

Subordinated ZTAcaEE ATl o1 &caee B I
T @S WUHT GUSHT (araehal, W|UMTA e
HTgeeehl aTel =T HATS] GhrAl ETHENT Wbl g |
yfcaes fafqar Ser @&T Subordinated aTcaE®

g7

3.9

if any. Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit
or loss over its useful life, from the date that is available for
use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and
comparative periods is five year or as per the agreement.
Amortization method, useful lives and residual value are

reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if any.

Investment Property

An investment property is defined as property held by the
bank to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than own-occupied. It will not be held for consumption in
the business operations and disposal would not affect the
operations of the bank. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently
all investment properties (without exception) are reported
at fair value with any gains or losses in fair value reported
in the income statement as they arise. The fair value used
is that which the property could be exchanged between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction
and should reflect market conditions at the balance sheet

date.

Explanatory Notes
The Bank does not have any Investment Property as on the

reporting date.

3.10 Deposits, Debts Securities Issued and Subordinated

a)

b)

c)

Liabilities
Deposits
The Bank accepts deposits from its customers under Term
deposits. These transactions are recorded on the bank’s
books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for
the Bank and represents the amount owed by the Bank to

the customer.

Debt Securities Issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued
by the Bank. Debt securities issued are initially measured
at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Bank does not have any of
such debentures issued by the bank as on the reporting date

Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event
of winding up are subordinate to the claims of depositors,
debt securities issued and other creditors. The Bank does
not have any of such subordinated liabilities as on the

reporting date.
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3.11 Stationery

Stationery purchased are stated at cost and charged to

revenue at the time of consumption.

3.12 Provisions and Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Bank recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the
Bank has a present constructive or legal obligation that can
be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of

economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is

remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the
expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation
under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable
that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the

obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income

are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but
probably will not require an outflow of resources. It generally
comprises of documentary credits, forward asset purchases
and undrawn formal standby facilities.

The Bank does not have any Provisions as at reporting date.
Contingent liabilities have been presented under schedule
4.28.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income and fees &
commission. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not
recognized during the period in which its recoverability of
income is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition

are as below:
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a)

Interest income
Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using accrual

method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Contractual interest income and expense
on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or

loss is recognized within net interest income.

Interest income on financial assets classified as amortized
cost or FVOCI is measured using effective interest rate
method. These financial assets include loans and advances
including staff loans, placements with BFls, investment in

government securities, etc.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts. Where the estimates of cash
flows have been revised, the carrying amount of the financial
asset or liability is adjusted to reflect the actual and revised
cash flows, discounted at the instrument’s original effective
interest rate. The adjustment is recognised as interestincome
or expense in the period in which the revision is made. If
the financial asset has been reclassified, subsequent
increases in the estimates of future cash receipts as a result
of increased recoverability are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate from the date of the change in

estimate.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of

measuring the impairment loss.
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Explanatory Notes
Interest income for the reporting period is NPR 1,928.82

million which is presented under schedule 4.29.

Management fee received from customers amounting NPR
32,347,516 on loan approved during the year, being an
integral part of the effective interest rate, has been deferred
as Unearned income since the loan has not been disbursed
as on the reporting date. The outstanding amount of
Unearned income as on Ashad 32, 2079 is NPR 75,866,079
as shown below:

Amount (In NPR)

Unearned Income m

Opening 43,518,563
Transfer to account during the year 32,347,516
Transferred from account during the year -
Closing 75,866,079

b)

c)

d)

Fees and Commission

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided or significant act
performed whenever the benefit exceeds cost in determining
such value. Whenever, the cost of recognizing fees and
commissions on an accrual basis exceeds the benefit in
determining such value, the fees and commissions are
recognized during the year. Loan syndication fees are
recognized as revenue when the syndication has been
completed and the bank retained no part of the loan package
for itself, or retained a part at the same effective interest rate

as for the other participants.

Fees and commissions are integral part of the effective
interest rate of the Loans &Advances. These include
origination fees or other yield enhancing fees as mentioned
in Note 3.13 (a) above.

Other operating Income

The Bank presents income other than those presented
under interest income, fees and commission income under
this heading. Dividend income received from equity shares
is also recognized as other operating income in the books

when the bank’s right to receive the dividend is established.

Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to
trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realised and
unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign

exchange differences.
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e)

Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss

At initial recognition, the bank may choose to designate
certain financial assets and liabilities as being held at fair
value through profit or loss (the fair value option). Realised
and unrealised gains and losses on these instruments are

reported through net trading income.

3.14 Interest Expense

Interest expense should be measured using the Effective
Interest Method for financial and debt instruments not
classified as FVTPL. Interest expense is determined in
a similar way to interest income, with interest expense
incorporating contractual interest due, premiums or
discounts and any capitalizable fees and transaction costs

such as origination fees or costs.

3.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Bank estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value of the Cash Generating Unit's (CGU)
less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its

recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,
in determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate

valuation model is used.

Explanatory Notes
The Bank does not have impairment expense in the reporting

period

3.16 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits includes all forms of consideration given
by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees

or for the termination of employment.

The Bank operates a defined contribution plans as provident
fund contribution of its employees and other post-employment
benefit plans for the accumulated leave encashment under
its Staff Service Bylaw.
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For defined contribution plans, the Bank pays contributions
to the publicly administered provident fund plans on a
mandatory basis, and such amounts are charged to operating
expenses. The Bank has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.

For other post-employment benefit, the liability recognized in
the financial statements is the obligations estimated on the

basis of the actuarial valuation.

The bank provides various loans and advances to the staff
as per the Staff Service Bylaw of the bank. The various loans
and advances provided are Home loan and Vehicle loan. Staff
loan is measured at amortized cost using effective interest
rate method and presented in loans and advances under
schedule 4.7. Unamortized staff benefit is the difference
between the value of loan at carrying amount and present
value of staff loan discounted at market rate. Amortization of
such staff loan is the difference between opening and closing

present value of loan.

3.16.1 Post- employment benefits
3.16.1.1 Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which the Bank pays fixed contribution into a
separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
to employee services in the current and prior periods, as
defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee
Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined
contribution plan is in proportion to the services rendered
to Bank by the employees and is recorded as an expense
under ‘Personnel expense’ as and when they become due.
Unpaid contribution is recorded as a liability under ‘Other
Liabilities’.

Bank contributed 10% of the basic salary of each employee to
the Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF). The above expenses
are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’

as defined in NAS- 19 (Employee Benefits).

The Gratuity Liability of 8.33% on Basic Salary of staff is
computed as per Labour Act, 2074 and provided accordingly
treating it as defined contribution plan as the contribution is

fixed.

3.16.1.2 Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
other than a defined contribution plan. The Bank’s net
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obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service

costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The Bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses net of
deferred tax arising from defined benefit plans immediately
in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to
defined benefit plans in employee benefit expense in profit or
loss.

The Bank recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment
or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment
or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or
settlement comprises any resulting change in the fair value
of plan assets, any change in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, any related actuarial gains and
losses and any past service cost that had not previously
been recognized.

3.16.1.3 Other Post Employment benefit plans

a.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits are all employee benefits
other than short term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits. Accordingly, leave encashment plan of the Bank
has been considered as Other Long-Term Employee
Benefits as per Nepal Accounting Standards, NAS-19
(Employee Benefits).

Unutilized Accumulated Leave

Bank’s liability towards the accumulated leave which is
expected to be utilized beyond one year from the end of
the reporting period is treated as other long-term employee
benefits.

Bank’s net obligation towards unutilized accumulated leave
is calculated by discounting the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods to determine the present value of
such benefits. The Discount Rate is based on Yield to Maturity
(YTM) available on Government bonds having similar term to

decrement-adjusted estimated term of liabilities.

The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit
method. Net change in liability for unutilized accumulated
leave including any actuarial gain and loss are recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’

in the period in which they arise.
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Explanatory Notes
Employee benefit reported under schedule 4.36 includes
bonus provision calculated at the rate of 10% of profit as per

Bonus Act.

Other post-employment benefit and actuarial assumptions
etc. related with long term employee benefits has been
presented under schedule 4.23.

The various metrics used for calculation of amortized staff
loan is presented below.

Total Staff Loan (NPR) 118,347,153
Unamortized staff benefits (NPR) 6,655,693
Amortized Staff Loan (NPR) 111,691,460

Particulars Home [ Auto }| Overdraft
Loan | Loan

Original Average Tenure (Yrs) 2196 7.00 4.00
Remaining Average Tenure (Yrs) 19.79  4.89 2.51
Interest Rate % 6% 6% 6%
Market Rate % 7% 7% 7%

The staff benefit to the Staffs due to concessional interest
rate on Staff Loan is determined by applying the differential
interest rate 1% (i.e. 7% less 6%) on Actual staff loan utilized

by respective staffs during the financial year.

3.17 Other Operating expenses

3.17.1 Operating Lease Expense

The Bank expensed off Pre-operating Expenses in the first

year of its operation as and when incurred.

3.18 Income Tax

a)

b)

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax
and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity

or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable
on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising

from the declaration of dividends.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
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taxation purposes. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rate applicable to the Bank as at the reporting date which
is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax

asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Temporary differences in relation to a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability for a specific lease is regarded as a net
package (the lease) for the purpose of recognizing deferred

tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

3.19 Share Capital and Reserves

The Bank classifies the capital instruments as equity
instruments or financial liabilities in accordance with the
substance with the contractual terms of the instruments.
Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets of an
entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are
classified as equity of the Bank and distributions thereon are
presented in statement of changes in equity.

3.20 Lease

The Bank leases an office premises for a period of 10 years,
with an option to renew the lease thereafter. The lease was
previously classified as Operating leases in accordance with
NAS 17 resulting in Deferred Lease Liability.

The Bank has recognized Right-of-use asset and a lease
liability amounting NPR 48,224,902.01, at the beginning of
the reporting period (the initial application date), in relation to
the above Lease, in accordance with Para C8 of Appendix C
of NFRS 16 - Leases.

The Bank determines its incremental borrowing rate by
analyzing the current Bond yield and making certain
adjustments to reflect the term of the lease and type of asset

leased.

After the initial application date, the Right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost and depreciated using
straight-line method over the remaining lease term. In
addition, the asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of

the lease liability.

Similarly, the lease liability is measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. The interest on lease

liability is recognized in profit or loss.

gl A T I8 FHINH

%F. Right-of-Use ¥l

FAGT UG gEfead  Right-of-use SRR
ATGH ¥.q3 SASET T TS0 AT FEA TG

q% A ¥ IR¥,20%

I9 99 99 -

U3 NAS 49 JTaRE 79 aeh (3,459,209)

TEIl ERcd YRbl WA

TaT3 : I9 AUl amortization (%,94%,9%Y)

qaw @ 35,%05,4%

g g quae e

FAGT GG GEIId UgT  ATIdel  &Tcd
qIgHl ¥.R3 A A WG TR G |
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Information about the Lease is presented below:

i. Right-of-use Assets
Right-of-use assets related to office premises is presented
within Property & Equipment in Schedule 4.13.

g |
Right-of-Use ¥l Right-of-use Assets m

Opening Balance 48,224,902
Addition during the year -

Less: Opening Deferred Lease Liability

as per NAS 17 (3,561,901)
Less: Amortization during the year (6,154,745)
Closing 38,508,256

ii. Lease Liability
Lease liability related to office premises is presented within
Other Liabilities in Schedule 4.23.

TR THRH ¥ ¥ R0R Opening Balance 48,224,902
g 99 99 - Addition during the year -
HAS: WEl ATl GRhAl ¥ ,\%3 359 Less: Payment for Leases 4,763,281

TS ATYAEl kA Wl 5, %85 5%¥

Total Cash out flow for Leases 8,498,664

UETel SMTcaal AT (3,934,355 )

A @ ¥3,%%9,59

M. T A fra ufgme i @
AT A fqaurT giee TRue @

TETehl  QTRIcAel TSl 3,934 35 Y
el At T FH FodAdl TEET -
qrategd @

S 39, 35Y

Y, T YA fqawrm qeam e @

AT A fqEurET gies TRue @
Tgl AT el e 5, %35 %% ¥

ST G,¥%5,%%¥

RO | Rl e

P ATHAT HTART SAREERH AN AT
gid P AR q9T Gidd Jiq R AR SEd
TR 3 | AR T AR AR qER
gefiT femamabr ATRT a1 ArEeTs giaaader sEtaE
A IR IR AT WG ST Fedrer |
T AU g | giad 9iq SR AnRT TR
SITHT RO A A FEEARRH] AU AHATASA
T WEROT SR [EEHE AR AT A TS
FET W@ AN W AU TR |

Interest on Lease Liabilities (3,735,384)
Closing 43,461,621

iii. Amount recognized in Statement of Profit or loss

Amount recognized in Statement of
Profit or loss

Interest on Lease Liabilities 3,735,384

Expensens relating to short-term &
low value leases
Total 3,735,384

iv. Amount recognized in Statement of Cash flows

Amount recognized in Statement of
Cash flows

Cash outflows for Leases 8,498,664
Total 8,498,664

3.21 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.
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ii)

Disclosures & Additional Information
Risk Management

The Bank has set up a separate Risk Management
Department (RMD) which oversees overall risk that arise
out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis
and are put to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk
Management Committee and the Board to discuss the

reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Committee

Under Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on Corporate
Governance, the Board has established a Board level Risk
Management Committee with clear terms of reference, co-
ordinated by a Non-executive Director, where Co-ordinator
of Audit Committee, Head of Risk Department and Deputy
General Manager (DGM)- Risk & Operations are the other
members. The Committee meets once in every three months.
The Committee oversees and reviews the fundamental
prudential risks including credit, market, reputational, capital
and liquidity, operational including conduct, financial crime
and information and cyber security risk, etc. The Risk
Management Committee receives periodic reports on risk
management, including our portfolio trends, policies and
standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy, and
is authorised to seek and review any information relating to

an activity within its terms of reference.

At the strategic level, Risk is clearly owned by the Board. The
Risk Management Committee’s role is to review and advise,
diving deeply into risk issues, so that the Board is well placed

to perform its role as the ultimate owner of risk appetite.

Risk Governance

Effective Risk management is essential to consistent and
sustainable performance for all of our stakeholders and is
therefore a central part of the Bank’s financial and operational
performance. The Bank adds value to clients and therefore
the communities in which it operates, generating returns for

shareholders by taking and managing risks.

The Risk Management Policy adopted by the Bank sets
out a refreshed risk culture and clear control framework,
with sharper delineation of responsibilities. It sets out the
principles and standards for risk management across the
bank.
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The bank manages enterprise wide risks that are inherent
in its strategy and business model, with the objectives of
maximizing risk-adjusted returns while remaining within its
risk appetite. The Bank will not compromise adherence to
its risk appetite in order to pursue revenue growth or higher

returns.

The Bank’s key risk priorities are: strengthen the risk culture,
manage and improve information and cyber security, manage
financial crime risk, strengthen our conduct environment,
enhance our compliance infrastructure and improve our

efficiency and effectiveness.

The Bank uses a set of principles that describe its risk
management culture, on a sustainable basis. The principles

of risk management followed by the Bank include:

Balancing risk and return.

Conduct of business: seeking to achieve good outcomes for
clients, investors and the market in which the bank operates,
while abiding by the spirit and letter of laws and regulations
and demonstrating that we are here for good through our
conduct.

Responsibility and Accountability: Ensuring that risk taking is
disciplined and focused, particularly within area of authority,
and that risk taking is transparent, controlled and reported in
line with the Enterprise Risk Management Framework, within
risk appetite boundaries and where there is appropriate
infrastructure and resource.

Anticipation: Anticipating material future risks, learning
lessons from events producing adverse outcomes and
ensuring awareness of known risks

Competitive advantage: Achieving competitive advantage

through efficient and effective risk management and control

The ultimate responsibility for setting the bank’s risk appetite
and for the effective management of risk rests with the
Board.

Acting within an authority delegated by the Board, The Risk
Management Committee is responsible for the establishment
of, and compliance with, policies relating to credit risk, market
risk, operational risk, reputational risk, country risk, financial
crime risk, information and cyber security risk. It meets once
in every three months and reviews the overall risk, which
is put to the Board for discussion. Its objective is to ensure
the effective management of risks throughout the Bank in
support of the Bank’s Business Strategy.
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iii)

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is responsible
for the management of capital and establishment of,
and compliance with, policies relating to balance sheet
management, including management of liquidity, capital
adequacy and foreign exchange and interest rate exposure

and tax exposure.

The Bank’s Committee Governance structure ensures that
risk-taking authority and risk management policies are
cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional,
client business, senior management and committees.
Information regarding material risk issues and compliance
with policies and standards is communicated through the

business, functional, senior management and committees.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank has
appropriate internal control framework in place that supports
the achievement of the strategies and objectives. The
various functions of the Bank should be looked upon with
a view to establish a proper control mechanism is in place
during expansion and growth which enables it to maximize
profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience

to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/
monitoring, in line with the NRB directives has effectively

implemented the same at the Bank.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
Management and Internal Auditor.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/
standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures
across the Bank through regular audit, information system
audit, Off Site review, AML/CFT/ KYC audit as well as
Risk based Internal Audit (RBIA) approach. The audit
observations are reported to the Chief Executive Officer
and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective
measures. Internal Audit reports are periodically forwarded
to the Audit Committee for review and the committee issues
appropriate corrective action in accordance with the issue
involved to the respective departments or offices.

4.1.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of a
counterparty to meet its agreed obligations to pay the Bank
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in accordance with agreed terms. The bank manages its
credit exposures following the principle of diversification
across products, client segments and industry sectors.
Credit Approval Document (CAD) / Credit Manual govern
the extension of credit to clients/developers. The manual
provides the framework for lending to counterparties,
account management, product approvals and other product
related guidance, credit processes and portfolio standards.

There is a clear segregation of duties between transaction
originators in the businesses and the approvers in the Risk
functions. All credit exposure limits are approved within a

defined Credit Approval Authority Framework.

The credit risk management covers, credit risk assessment
and credit approval, large exposures and credit risk
concentration, credit monitoring, credit risk mitigation and

portfolio analysis.

4.1.2 Operational Risk

We define Operational Risk as the potential for loss resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from the impact of external events, including
legal risks. We seek to minimize our exposure to operational
risk, subject to cost trade-offs. Operational risk exposures
are managed through a consistent set of management
processes that drive risk identification, assessment, control

and monitoring.

The Board level Risk Management Committee, oversees
the management of operational risks across the Bank. Risk
Owner has the responsibility to ensure that the Process
Owner demonstrates that process and control designs meet
applicable regulatory requirements, and that compliance
exceptions are identified, remediated and reported as
part of the operational risk profile. Risk owners have
responsibility for the control of operational risk arising from
the management of the following operational risk sub types:
External Rules & Regulations, Liability, Legal Enforceability,
Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security,
Internal Fraud or Dishonesty, External Fraud, Information
Security, Processing Failure and Model. Operational risks
can arise from all business lines and from all activities
carried out by the Bank. Operational Risk management
approach seeks to ensure management of operational risk
by maintaining a complete process universe defined for all
business segments, products and functions processes.

Products and services offered to clients and customers are
also assessed and authorized in accordance with product

program guidelines.
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4.1.3 Market Risk

We recognize Market Risk as the potential for loss of
earnings or economic value due to adverse changes in
financial market rates or prices. Risks arising out of adverse
movements in currency exchange rates, interest rates,
commodity price and equity prices are covered under Market
Risk Management. Our exposure to market risk arises
predominantly from customer driven transactions. The
market risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market

risk limits set by the Board.

4.1.4 Capital and Liquidity Risk

Capital risk is the potential for insufficient level or composition
of capital to support our normal operation. The bank
maintains a very strong capital position sufficient to support
its strategic aims. Capital adequacy ratio of the Bank as at 16
July, 2022 stood at 112.22 %.

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Bank either does not
have sufficient liquid financial resources available to meet
all its obligations as they fall due, or can only access these
financial resources at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk
Framework governs liquidity risk and is managed by ALCO.
In accordance with that policy, the Bank maintains a liquid
portfolio of marketable securities as a liquidity buffer.

4.1.5 Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the potential for damage to the reputation,
resulting in loss of earnings or adverse impact on market
capitalisation as a result of stakeholders taking a negative
view of the organisation, its actions or inactions-leading

stakeholders to change their behaviour.

Reputational risk is managed by the Board level Risk
Management Committee, which is responsible for protecting
the Bank’s reputation locally and has the responsibility
to ensure that the Bank does not undertake any activities
that may cause material damage to the reputation. All
employees are responsible for day-to-day identification and

management of reputational risk.

4.1.6 Information & Cyber Security Risk

Information & cyber security risk is the potential for loss
from a breach of confidentiality, integrity and availability
of bank information systems and assets through cyber-
attack, insider activity, error or control failure. The Risk
Management Committee seeks to avoid risk and uncertainty
for our critical information assets and systems and has low
appetite for material incidents affecting these or the wider
operations and reputation of the Bank. The Bank’s Cyber
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Security Strategy focuses the Bank’s resources on five key
investment priorities, viz. Identify, Detect, Recover, Respond

and Protect.

The Board level Risk Management Committee is responsible
for managing Information and Cyber Security Risk. In that
line, the Bank has developed IT Policy to identify, assess
and address the issues on information security risk. The
Bank has also developed Backup policy as part of business

continuity plan and disaster recovery mechanism.

Capital Management

Qualitative disclosures

The total equity of the bank comprises of paid up capital,
statutory reserves and other reserves. The paid-up capital
is a fully paid equity share. Bank does not have other
complex or hybrid capital instrument like preference share,
subordinated debts, warrants etc. The interest of equity
holder in the net assets of the bank is residual in nature.

The Bank has robust capital management plan to meet its
organic growth ambitions over the coming years both during
the normal conditions and to support its projected risk profile
under economically stressful conditions. As per our latest
CAR submitted to NRB, the Bank has more than sufficient
total capital in comparison with its ceiling as defined in its
Capital Risk Appetite due to mandatory paid up capital and
regulatory reserves. The Bank remains committed not only
being well capitalised but to maintaining a sustainable capital
position.

(ii) Quantitative disclosures

1. Capital structure and Capital Adequacy

a. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components:

Amount (NPR. in '000')

S.N. Core Capital (Tier 1) 23,286,963

q. (T 97) 39,500,000 a Paid up Equity Share Capital 21,600,000
. LS| ia(‘l CIREEIDES - b  Proposed Bonus Equity Share -
2 S fufraw - ¢ Share Premium -
X, (I AR SEET NZE=AVEEY d  Statutory General Reserves 758,725
4. Lk T AT FEI RYTRRR e Retained Earnings 946,293
& W o [ B f Un-audited current year cumulative profit -
Hfea TR

N g Other Free Reserve -
9, JY HEdrd Sie -
c. TS 3133?:[ W 95,044 h  Less: Intangible Assets 18,055
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b. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components:

Amount (NPR. in '000')

m Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) m

a General loan loss provision 155,826

b Exchange Equalization Reserve -

c. Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts
with information on the outstanding amount, maturity,
and amount raised during the year and amount eligible
to be reckoned as capital funds.
®  Not applicable.

d. Deductions from capital;
® NPR 18,055 thousand

e. Total qualifying capital;

B NPR 23,442,790 thousand
f. Capital adequacy ratio;
B 112.22 %.
g.- Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the

adequacy of its capital to support current and future
activities, if applicable;

The Bank has formulated and implemented the "Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process 2018" (ICAAP 2018)
which has been approved by the Board of Directors. The
ICAAP 2018 is a system of sound, effective, and complete
strategies and processes that allow the Bank to assess and
maintain, ongoing basis, the amounts, types and distribution
of internal capital that the Bank considers adequate to cover
the nature and level of risk to which the Bank is or might be
exposed to.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
shall also include requirement to have robust governance
arrangements, efficient process of managing all material
risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining
adequate economic capital at the Bank where economic
capital (economically needed capital) refers to the amount
of capital required for the Bank’s business operations and for
financing the associated risks.

ICAAP 2018 shall provide policy and procedural guidelines
for the calculation of internal capital adequacy by prescribing
appropriate methodologies, techniques and procedures to
assess the capital adequacy requirements in relation to the
Bank’s risk profile and effectiveness of its risk management,

control environment and strategic planning.
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The Board shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the
current and future capital needs of the bank in relation to
strategic objectives. The management shall review and
understand the nature and level of various risks that the bank
is confronting during different business activities and how
this risk relates to capital levels and accordingly implement
sound risk management framework specifying control

measures to tackle each risk factor.

The long-term plans and strategies of the bank is generally
guided by Annual Budgets/ Operating/ Tactical plans. To
ensure that the Bank’s capital adequacy commensurate
to demand of the capital required by the business targets,
the Management and the Board prudently and proactively
engage on ongoing process of capital and risk assessment,
stress testing and scenarios testing, monitoring and reporting
as per the ICAAP 2018.

The Bank also formulates and implements “Stress Testing
mechanism in order to assess the vulnerability of the Bank
under various stress situations typically, application of “what-
if” scenarios, especially in the problematic identification of low
frequency but high severity events and identifying expected
and unexpected losses. It focuses on capturing the impact of
large, but still plausible events and understanding the overall
risk profile in a coherent and consistent framework, including

impact analysis on earnings, solvency and liquidity.

Stress testing of the Bank also includes macroeconomic
environment of the country and its impact in the Bank’s
business as well as entire key risk areas and functions of the
Bank as far as data availability and resources permit those

having ultimate impact on the capital adequacy of the Bank.

A formal monitoring and reporting mechanism have been
established to provide the senior management necessary
information on the risk profile, trends, and the capital
requirements as per ICAAP 2018. Such reports are being
prepared on a monthly and quarterly basis and circulated
to relevant business units/departments, Integrated Risk
Management Department (IRMD), and tabled in Assets
Liability Committee (ALCO) meeting. Further quarterly
reports are presented to the Risk Management Committee

and the Board for review and discussions.

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all
capital instruments, especially in case of subordinated
term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

The bank has fully paid equity shares as qualifying capital.
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2. Risk exposures

a. Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk

and Operational Risk

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES Amount
(NPR. in '000')

a. Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 19,206,587

b. Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational 1,682,736

Risk

c. Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk

d. Adjustments under Pillar-II

Total Risk Weighted Exposures 20,889,323

(a+b+c+d)

@A (§.‘'000

q AU qEERE qAT AT A AHAT AT 359,0%%

O o B 1 L A 1

e %43 3% ?,3%3,00%

¥ HfEd e qar g e aret 4,453,430 Y UER430

P K EC e Rk A EU A

% Bl A WA WEEdd A

© IT SIEHIh aTal

5 ¥ wEeR BAALE %%, %43

AT drevl fariw 1,30% 3% ¥ 9,038 434
il 9,394,590 13,308,459

b. Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 9 categories of Credit Risk

S.No. Particulars Claim RWE
As on 16.07.2022 As on 16.07.2022
1

Claims on govt. and central Bank

381,024

Amount (NPR. In '000')

2 Claims on other official entities

3 Claims on Banks 9,753,376 2,293,075

4 Claims on corporate and securities firm 15,582,530 15,582,530

5 Claims secured by commercial real state

6 Past due Claims

7 High risk claims

8 Other Assets 294,453 294,453

9 Off Balance sheet ltems 1,304,294 1,036,529
Total 27,315,677 19,206,587

T FA Aifgw W@ @A T0ET dQifeer
FAl SREHH SR WG @
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c. Total risk weighted exposure calculation table:

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk

A. Balance Sheet Exposures

Amount (NPR. in '000')

Specific Eligible Net
Provision CRM Value

Risk Weighted

Exposures

Cash Balance 0%

Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank 375,108 375,108 0% -
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities - - 0% -
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital 9,325,376 9,325,376 20% 1,865,075
adequacy requirements

Claims on domestic banks that do not meet 428,000 428,000 100% 428,000
capital adequacy requirements

Claims on Domestic Corporates 15,582,530 15,582,530 100% 15,582,530
Interest Receivable/claim on government securities 5,916 5,916 0% -
Other Assets (as per attachment) 341,259 46,806 - 294,453 100% 294,453
TOTAL (A) 26,058,197 46,806 - 26,011,390 18,170,058

B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures

Specific Eligible
Provision

Amount (NPR. in '000')

Risk Weighted

Exposures

LC Commitments with Original Maturity Over 515,461 257,731
6 months domestic counterparty

Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter 3,000 90 2,910 40% 1,164
guarantee domestic counterparty

Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 10,362 10,362 20% 2,072
Other Contingent Liabilities 775,562 775,562 100% 775,562
TOTAL (B) 1,304,385 - 90 1,304,295 1,036,529
Total RWE for credit Risk Before Adjustment 27,362,581 46,806 90 27,315,685 19,206,587
(A)+(B)

Adjustments under Pillar Il

SRP 6.4a(3) - Add 10% of the loans & facilities in excess of Single Obligor Limits -
SRP 6.4a(4) - Add 1% of the contract (sale) value in case of the sale of credit with recourse -
Total RWE for Credit Risk after Bank's 27,362,581 46,806 90 27,315,685 19,206,587

adjustments under Pillar Il
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d. Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

e. NPA ratios

iiij Compliance with external requirement

The bank has complied with the requirement of capital

adequacy framework issued by Nepal
throughout the reporting period.

Rastra Bank

¥.3 g 9EER
deheT AU CRATHI-I¥ FTER @ auiHa
I 9eTge dieed Tl G

I
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4.3 Related Parties
The Bank identifies the following as the related parties under

the requirements of NAS-24:

ft gl AUATA Hegel, d=dlelh afafa Mr. Anuj Agarwal BOD Chairman

#ft AT 9T I, =il gfafa Mr. Kedarnath Sharma Director

ff =g YR THA 9y, 9ol afafa Mr. Chandra Pd. Dhakal Director

o et "W, gAAF FHIT Mr. Lalmani Joshi Director

A FE THR A SRR ERINED Mr. Shankar Prasad Adhikari Independent Director

S gAT qrE SERISEEERIPIEC L Mr. Suman Pokharel Public Director

o fomm sl oA, FAALRT THE Ms. Lima Adhikari Public Director

A1 W T CIREE W AqHMI P Mr. Ram Krishna Khatiwada Key Management Personnel

¥.39 &I FaIIFEers Qv
AoAAF qATH Tl TIRAEAS A5 AT TS
TAGH WH G | AHH THE FRFQ AfaET qdqr
MG ERCIREED Fl%f HGWE’»QMI':': REERGEIIRSI
Wv&wa S yHE FEF AfaEaars
Wv&@aﬂawwﬁmwﬁm
TR TWH MNCH g a9 FeT  ATAIFETATs
YA TRUST GEeral HFaeiehl dHard fafemrae
T TGS 9 FHIHT T MU SFER TR
T fuEr g | gge Al Ter aEwrTdeTrs
o W TR ghauer SRd WS ghrdn, eEere
gfqen, Hgfod @ =MD FAT FHG IIA
S
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_

4.3.1 Compensation to Key Management Personnel
The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting
allowances. Salary and allowances are provided to Chief
Executive Officer and other member of Key Management
Personnel (KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief
Executive Officer is based on the contract entered by the
Bank with him whereas compensation paid to other member
of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions

made by management time to time in this regard.

The details relating to compensation paid to key management

personnel are as follows:

Transaction with Board of Directors

m

4,010,000 Board Meeting Fees 1,070,000
YO duT AT G9 R 5,090 Travel and Other Board Expenses 298,070
STHAT qyagg,ogo Total 1,368,070

bl THE FEE A

_

AT HHAT UpHsd ddd 93,840,000
Rkl

)

ERISIEIERIEPIE 19¥%,9%%
fraa arves -
ST 1¥,5%%,4¥%

Transactions with Chief Executive Officer
Amount (In NPR)

Short Term Benefit- Fixed Salary 13,750,000

Other current benefits and payments 1,149,149

Post-employment benefits -

Total 14,899,149
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T a1 A faaer friess

Joaree aiufd Joe T 9,090,000
FH qAT AT @ 325,000
THE FEFH AGEAR AT TR 1%,5%%,9%%
qMG WA T T - - 95,389,313
Summary of Transactions with Related Parties Amount (NPR. in '000)

Items in Statement of Profit or Loss

Board Meeting Fee-Directors 1,070,000
Travel and Other Board Expenses 298,070
Salary of CEO 14,899,149
Balances as on Ashadh End - - 16,267,219

Items in Statement of Financial Position - - -

Off Balance Sheet Exposure - - -

¥ ¥ T Pl

_
¥00,000,000 %.900 ¥0,000,000 000

ikl Esﬁ R4%,000,000 %.q00 39,500,000 000

gl R4%,000,000 %.q00 39,500,000 000

4.4 Share Capital
Capital Structure of the Bank is as follows:

m No. of Shares Value per Shares Capital in Value (NPR)

Authorized Capital 400,000,000 NPR 100 40,000,000,000
Issued Capital 216,000,000 NPR 100 21,600,000,000
Paid Up Capital 216,000,000 NPR 100 21,600,000,000
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4.4.1 Shareholding Pattern
The Shareholding pattern of the Bank is as follows:

Particulars of Share Ownership Current Year

1. Local Ownership 100% 21,600,000,000
1.1 Government of Nepal 10.00% 2,160,000,000
1.2 "Ka" Class Licensed Institutions 20.89% 4,512,564,000
1.3 Other Licensed Institutions 0.05% 10,800,000
1.4 Organized Institutions (Promoters) 18.97% 4,097,736,000
1.5 General Public 40.00% 8,640,000,000
1.6 Others (Promoters) 10.09% 2,178,900,000

2. Foreign Ownership - -

Total 100% 21,600,000,000

¥.¥.] FFEEET wua qiEdT T

9 HET 0Oz TAdHl  FERT I 200,000,000 %900 30,000,000,000  §0% HEMTH AT
3q MG VR TdHl  ITIRT X R9%,000,000 %900 9,500,000 000 gsﬁ (R9.2% )

o fafd R09s WM q T FH GiE o gfdedE X & 80 FASH (@AWY FHaww #Roawd) am|
AT ST T F |

4.4.2 Equity Share Capital Movement
Details of Paid Up capital of the Bank

Fiscal Year No. of Value Total Paid
Shares per Share Up Capital NPR

Ordinary Share Capital as at 1st Shrawan, 2078 200,000,000 100 20,000,000,000 60% Promoter's
Ordinary Share Capital as at 31st Ashad, 2079 216,000,000 100 21,600,000,000 Share capital
i.e. NPR 12.96 billion

The Bank issued and allotted 8% Bonus shares amounting NPR 1,600 million (excluding cash dividend for distribution tax) on
Falgun 1, 2078.
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4.5 Statutory Reserves and Funds

The reserves include statutory reserves and funds set aside
for specific purpose. The various reserves and funds are as

below:

4.5.1 General Reserve

General Reserve is created as per Section 44 of the Banks
and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 equivalent to 20% of the
net profit earned during the year until the reserve is twice the
paid-up share capital of the Bank after which 10% of the net
profit earned during the year shall be set aside as General

A AT THATAR ey T W THA Al Reserve.
TITAT (0% T@FAFI TH9eg, |
BEIEE e Tepeh EI\_OCT ﬂaﬁﬁ‘lﬁﬂT qr Huare @d Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other

W A1 A @A THATAY T (Head |

(TFH ®.)
mm

heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank.

qe TEH LY¥R9R,49%3

FHITHAT  THATAT ROY¥ {0,199
ge YATHIH 0% 0% 404 499

Ifvaw @H 94 5;,\93%,0%0

Amount (In NPR)

Opening 554,219,573

Transfer to Reserve 204,505,517
20% of Net Profit 204,505,517

Closing 758,725,090

¥4} dfaq gaTEr

(TPH ®.)
I D

qe TEH 1,5%5,%9%,5%¥
FHITAT THATAL (55R,%¥,940)

I AYE @3 FATH 4,0R343945 ¥

IR ST HITHAT  THTHTL (R0%,4,0¥ 499)
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4.5.2 Movement in Retained Earning Amount (In NPR)
u

Opening 1,828,916,824
Transfer to Reserve (882,624,150)
Profit for the year 1,022,527,584
Transfer to Genaral Reserve (204,505,517)
Transfer to CSR Fund (10,225,276)
Transfer to Staff Training Fund 262,845
Transfer from Regulatory Reserve (538,327)
DTA Recognised (144,543)
Share Issue Expenses (6,615,390)
Bonus Share Issued (1,684,210,526)
Transfer from CSR Fund 825,000
Closing 946,292,674

¥.4.3 UWNG qWNE IaEiicd #

4.5.3 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Fund

BEIE] e St feferar HAIAN B 0,RI4RR As per Nepal Rastra Bank directive, the Bank is required to
TN TS SO< Qicd HITHT  {hraTea< create a fund for Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR)
Tlﬁ'@ g | bl TG T AN IJALETIH HIAT related activities equivalent to one percent of the net profit.
®.5JY,000 gd TH F | Ig FAE ECCIRIE| CSR Fund of NPR 10,222,522 has been created as per the
FUAT FAIH  ATART L9 THITH  SRIETT NRB Directive. The Bank has expended NPR 825,000 in the
g SO@Icd ®FAT YART T m | CSR activities in current year. The fund so created shall be

used for CSR activities of the Bank in the next fiscal year as

per the directions of the Board.

(TFH =)
mm

& 14,5¥9,33%
FHITHAT THATAC 90,33¢4,R\%
T AVE GF FATH 1,0R3439 45 ¥
gT FATEE % 10,33%,3%
TG a9 WG SAEndcd FEH TRUH @9 (53%,000)
At @ RY,0%9,%q0

Amount (In NPR)

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund m m

Opening 15,641,334
Transfer to Fund 10,225,276
Profit for the year 1,022,527,584
1% of Net Profit 10,225,276
CSR Expense during the year (825,000)
Closing 25,041,610
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4.5.4 Employee Training Fund

As per Nepal Rastra Bank directive, the Bank is required to
spend three percent of staff cost incurred in previous year
in the Training & Development of the staff. The Bank has
incurred NPR 2,358,737 in staff training & development
during the current year and Staff Training Fund has been

created as required by NRB Directive. The fund shall be
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used for training and development of staffs in the next fiscal

year.
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Amount (In NPR)

Opening 2,923,583

Transfer to Fund 2,095,892
3% of PY Staff Expenses (As per NRB Directive) 2,095,892

Employee Training Expense during the year (2,385,737)

Closing 2,660,738
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The details of Statutory reserves included in Reserves disclosed in Statement of Financial Position is as below: Amount (In NPR)

Statutory reserve

General reserve 758,725,090 554,219,572
Corporate Social Responsibility Fund 25,041,610 15,641,334

Regulatory reserve 739,944 57,074

Staff Training Fund 2,660,738 2,923,583
Non-statutory reserve
Other reserve 946,292,674 1,828,916,824

Total 1,733,460,056 2,401,758,387
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0,/ 09 YUY - - - - - - - - - YU SV
089/95  Y909Y - - - - - - - - - 4900y
3005 /9%, Y2y, ¥0q - - SENATE - - - - - eRRYY
S 94Y,%93 - - - QYY1 ¥} - - - - - ]R084%

The details of Regulatory reserve included in Statutory Reserves disclosed in Statement of Financial Position is as below:

Interest

Receivable

Short Loan
Loss
Provision

Short
provision
for possible

losses on
Investment

Short
provision
on NBA

Deferred
Tax
Assets

Amount (In NPR)

Gain on Actuarial Fair value Total
Bargain loss loss
Purchase j Recognized | Recognized
in OCI

2074/75 - - - - - - - - - - -
2075/76 67,490 - - - - - - - - - 67,490
2076/77 55,647 - - - - - - - - - 55,647
2077/78 57,074 - - - - - - - - - 57,074
2078/79 595,401 - - - 144,543 = - - - - 739,944
Total 755,613 - - - 144,543 - - - - - 920,156
¥.§ ofy X SR 4.6 Earnings Per Share

¥.%9 Imeya WA fE) s
gid SRR AR SEATs de AR A IR i
i SRR FHITH! AR I 8T qednT Tag |
AP TEAT, ATH] AAHAT oI ATRT (Ao LT

gueHT Yiq ORe Sfq H UEes, el 4 gl
ST AT BT | IT TTEer LIl ARTAT Tl
TS AATIH] ATRT a7 ATFAATS aH qUB AT

IO 9T G&ITT AT T (Aabled g |

YR RRIAE ARHT O HATHT dEA F
FPAEAE o @, AUMASR AT, AUTMIHE TIT
IR TR ATH @ T AR AT qrEaR
AT IREdT &l AT THH qdT Il AT
AP A THH TS TUAT g |

AERYT 90 TR AR dd QU SHISH HEmRer
SR AT O AR T atd e ded
eI ATEN g

4.6.1 Basic Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is
a market prospect ratio that measures the amount of net
income earned per share of stock outstanding. In other
words, this is the amount of money each share of stock would
receive if all of the profits were distributed to the outstanding
shares at the end of the year. It is calculated by dividing profit
or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the average

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders
consists of the earnings of the Bank after deduction of
all expenses, tax expense and preference dividends,
differences arising on the settlement of preference shares,
and other similar effects of preference shares classified as
equity.

The calculation of basic earnings per share has been
based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
and weighted average number of shares outstanding as

tabulated below:



170 | st afifer wfdaeT R00e/0Q

(TFH &)
_

R SRS 6] 99 AR & 4,033,439 45 ¥ 539,¥90,39
U SRR T AEd g
TEIq AR 0% 555,559 94%,%03,9¥0

Y& TR ¥/ 4.3

Amount (In NPR)

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders NPR 1,022,527,584 837,410,372
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Reported 206,666,667 156,602,740
Restated - -
Basic Earnings Per Share NPR
Reported 4.95 5.35
Restated - -
¥.%.R Eﬁ‘l’ﬂ' (Diluted) ¥ X ATTH 4.6.2 Diluted Earnings Per Share

HiAd 9 A% AR BT I AT qreor S
I g FH T e RUE SR 9fEfid
FTUTA AT TET AT SUROTATS GHESE T
TS T SO @7 &7 | ATIbdEee’s Sebebl
facter feafaaer Sfed wgwme T fadw fri o@
dfed " RS aH IAH WEg | B

Diluted shares are the shares that would be outstanding if all
possible sources of conversion, such as convertible bonds
and stock options, were exercised. Specific financial figures
in terms of fully diluted shares outstanding are reported
to allow investors to properly assess the Bank's financial
situation. There are no dilutive shares during the year.

ST AT AR SERAT 9RO g F afd
forcfrr Suar W@

4.7 COVID related and other Disclosures
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R
Accrued Interest received after Ashad end, 2079 till 15 Bhadra, 2079
Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio

Extension of moratorium period of Loan provided to Industry or Project under construction

Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision

Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected Borrowers Not applicable to

Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected Borrowers the Bank

Expiry date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (Covid Loan) extended for upto 1 year with
5% Provisioning

Expiry date of Additional 10% Term Loan (Covid Loan) extended for upto 1 year with 5% Provisioning

Time extension provided for repayment of Principal & Interest for upto 2 years as per clause 41 of
NRB Directives 2

During FY 2078/79
s e

Refinance Loan

Business Continuity Loan Not applicable to

Subsidized Loan the Bank

4.8 Additional disclosures of Non-consolidated entities
¥oUegma Mdm fEr @R wifaas sroeear

The bank has no any investment in any entities which

:’: % P A TETF FFOET T T requires consolidation as per applicable NFRS nor any
é*f D 5]‘31?[ R IREFGEIR TR ,\,lf\d)d:d investment in associates which needs to be pooled in the
o faEer @A nfrﬁ & arr ;ﬁ afiy financial statement of the bank. The bank has no other equity
@m 9\ ST TRl a;r SgFr fade investment.

foraurerr sidee a9 Skl fadiE faEor qumEie
T g | He I GUEERAT AT A
TRTH T |

4.9 Events after the Reporting Date

¥.R yfqaeqar fafa qe=Tq@Er weATeR

a_*_;r £y Ty TS R Ferefer The Bank monitors and assesses events that may have
ﬁ T-fr TR T T %!_rﬁ'q ﬁ g potential impact to qualify as adjusting and/or non-adjusting
Tlff ﬁ ar ?ﬁ Ty i%ra‘i'(w Tl_rrf ] Tﬁ TI'P{'Q‘cﬁf events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting
g et T ; T N events are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures

. S T g Tloﬁ' TI'FC@ g T and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes
Bl ; T S e with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.
Fefier arere afeq Aremm @erEr T “ﬁ'@ﬁ R There are no material events that have occurred subsequent
a6 qo E'Tﬂ_'i; 2033 fg oﬁ?ﬁ'{{ Favuy W W to 17 July, 2022 till the signing of this financial statement on
et 22 & 2033 ww faf R e September 22, 2022.

I P T ARYT FEAEE Hda g |
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AJAIIRIvT oleTead! fadi=T aifdsies (AeiRid) A JEan e B e G (P T A
(THFH & BIITHD) AdARID Joafoerd AHRID
fadr Raifa [azor IR AMRID IR 3D ad agd) 9,235,599 9,395,353 AIECEANCE!
el gI A AT 9,55%,3%% 9,3%9,39% 9,33%,%0%
TS qAT T T&E ¥ ¥ Q¥R 9,9%3,R%9 %0050 mem 2 %59 3,554 9,2\%
ﬁqm(]gém{%qﬁ:ﬁaﬁ 39 907 RJ19¥ 9,5\ _%s WWW@% % 3z ¥R
Jor o fafar gemT Placements RESLAL &,9¥9,3=q 15,353 ¥\% GE I TAT FIIA AR R,%W™ 350 9,%3¥
ST a7 QraeT Q438,391 99,2%%,%9 RRIYARR T T ST - - -
Terdose®T AT - 135%535 1,35%9¥% F AT ST 1,594,253 9,334,943 1,395¥3
TR T TEITSTE Sheq=T STt - - - It QT 3 TR e s/ () 93%,040 209,30 9§,5%%
STTISTT T JHE0T AN PRI =19 BT T ST 9,989,293 1,9%¢,¥93 139,010
G TIT ST TP %0¥3 %935 93 SaferT @t R35, 33 19¥,359 53,953
I TR O 4 5¥ 93,9%4 G,¥50 Y T @ Y9 50% %¥9q,05% g R9Y¥
FA FF WERER %N YRR ET FATH q¥5%, 0% 2]3,0¥% 190,333
U e R graTe SRR/ (@) 400 =3 3%
Wqﬁﬁ 29,500,000 39,500,000 20,000,000 FPTT AT T q¥84,50R RRRRE 9,985,9%%
STET qT HIVeE 1,939,0%3 1,04, %44 R¥0%, %45 S ICECSCE] ¥R, %9 qUsES %03
frag ¥35,0%0 ¥00 9] 309,5¥0 o A/ () 9,035,319 TRYANE 539,¥90
qae 9,840,000 500,000 9,500,000 mf_“'@ﬁ J— - - _
SO ST - - - g freqa s 9,035,399 VYU 539 ¥q0
37T STcae® quT sqae T %943 133 qr0o,30%
A YT qAT it RY,ER¥ & R¥,¥9R,091 R¥,¥RZ,K0R T AT AT
ATHT AT AR THeoT STER Gg T / (i) 9,035,994 TRY MU c39¥90
T GRS (RA9UR) (¥ ¥3R) (995 ,059)
Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly) Frrerre T SR afost &= T / (@ ROSAR REORR habhks
4th Quarter ended of Financial Year 2020-21 (NPR in ‘000")
TARTHET
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION THIS Ql:sAr\::)TEz PREVIOUS QL:EAN?)TE: pRE\%ZTjZSgSE::;(; S sy e tﬁﬁ FIYT JETT 992.33% 9%9.25% 304.Y4%
ENDING Traftehar shstl/ et et (4.7, T e 31gaR) - - -
Assets T AT AT/ e TS Bt (.7, T T 3738m) - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,244,142 1,123,967 600,280 HIVhT AT R.¥0% R.¥0% R.¥0%
Due from NRB 375,108 221,514 1,879,968 e holt / FHaT qe ek geit (.49, 1 e TgEr) %%.R0% 49.%%% %.%3%
Placements with BFls 6,514,665 9,747,281 18,283,476 YR STSTET = - -
Loan and Advances 15,539,275 11,946,611 2,275,529 Wﬁﬁﬁf W Y ¥, \9Y ¥ .9 Y34
Investments Securities 1,286,838 1,286,746 Q‘FQT«TD'FH W ey ¥.\9Y ¥.3% Y34
Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates
Property and Equipment 69,399 72,299 81,762
Goodwill and intangible Assets 6,043 6,736 7,361
Other Assets 75,584 18,765 8,480
Total Assets 25,824,216 24,419,011 24,423,602
Capital and Liabilities
Paid up Capital 21,600,000 21,600,000 20,000,000
Reserves and surplus 1,737,043 1,405,491 2,401,758
Deposits 438,020 400,192 301,640
Borrowings 1,750,000 800,000 1,600,000
Bond and Debenture
Other liabilities and provisions 299,153 213,328 120,204
Total Capital and Liabilities 25,824,216 24,419,011 24,423,602
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contd... Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)

(NPR in ‘000

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS UP TO THIS UP TO PREVIOUS UP TO
QUARTER QUARTER CORROSPONDING
PREVIOUS YEAR QUARTER
Interest income 1,928,611 1,318,383 1,362,973
Interest expense 42,283 27,067 27,064
Net interest income 1,886,328 1,291,316 1,335,909
Fee and commission income 9,681 3,865 1,976
Fee and commission expense 46 38 42
Net fee and commission income 9,635 3,827 1,934
Other operating income = - -
Total operaing income 1,895,963 1,295,143 1,337,843
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 134,050 97,730 16,824
Net operating income 1,761,913 1,197,413 1,321,019
Personnel expenses 238,335 164,281 83,782
Other operating expenses 57,806 41,089 46,914
Operating profit 1,465,772 992,043 1,190,323
Non operating income/expense 100 183 7,426
Profit before tax 1,465,872 992,226 1,197,749
Income tax 439,761 297,668 360,339
Profit /(loss) for the period 1,026,111 694,558 837,410
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income 1,026,111 694,558 837,410
Distributable Profit
Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 1,026,111 694,558 837,410
Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per NRB Directive (217,579) (147,429) (178,087)
Free profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments 808,532 547,129 659,323
Ratios
Capital fund to RWA 119.22% 141.98% 305.55%
Non performing loan (NPL) to Toal loan (As per NRB Directive’ - - -
Total loan loss provision to Total NPL (As per NRB Directive) - - -
Cost of Funds 9.40% 9.40% 9.40%
Credit to Deposit Ratio ( As per NRB Directive) 66.20% 51.49% 9.63%
Base Rate - - -
Basic Earning Per Share 4.75 4.29 5.35
Diluted Earning Per Share 4.75 4.29 5.35
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COMPARISON OF UNAUDITED AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of FY 2021-2022

(NPRin ‘000’)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION || AS PER UNAUDITEDJ AS PER AUDITED VARIANCE REASONS
STATEMENTS VARIANCE
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 3,244,142 3,244,142 -
Due from NRB 375,108 375,108 -
Placements with BFIs 6,514,665 6,514,665 -
Loan and advances 15,539,275 15,539,062 (213) 0.0% Due to revision in market rate in Staff
Loan
Investments Securities - - -
Investment in subsidiaries and associa es - - -
Property & equipment 69,399 108,690 39,291 56.6% Due to recognition of Leasehold Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 6,043 6,043 -
Other assets 75,584 74,113 (1,471) -1.9%  Due to adjustment of Staff Salary Advance
Total Assets 25,824,216 25,861,824 37,607 01% -
Capital and Liabilities
Paid up Capital 21,600,000 21,600,000 -
Reserves and surplus 1,737,043 1,733,460 (3,583) 0% Due to decrease in Profit
Deposits 438,018 438,018 -
Borrowings - -
Bond and Debenture - - -
Other liabilities and provisions 2,049,154 2,090,345 41,191 2% Due to recognition of Lease Liability
Total Capital and Liabilities 25,824,216 25,861,824 37,607 0.1% -

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AS PER UNAUDITED

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

AS PER AUDITED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

VARIANCE

REASONS
FOR
VARIANCE

IN AMOUNT

Interest income 1,928,611 1,928,826 216 0% Increase in Interest Income
Interest expense 42,283 46,019 3,735 9% Increase in Interest on Leasehold asset
Net interest income 1,886,328 1,882,808 (3,520) 0% -

Fee and commission income 9,681 9,682 1 0% Due to increase in fee

Fee and commission expense 46 51 6 12%

Net fee and commission income 9,635 9,631 (4) 0% -

Other operating income - - -

Total operaing income 1,895,963 1,892,440 (3,524) 0% -

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans 134,050 134,050 -

and other losses

Net operating income 1,761,913 1,758,389 (3,524) - -

Personnel expenses 238,335 239,868 1,533 1% Due to adjustment of Staff Salary
Advance

Other operating expenses 57,806 54,925 (2,881) -5%  Due to recognition of Leasehold asset
Operating profit 1,465,772 1,463,597 (2,175) -0.1%

Non operating income/expense 100 100 -

Profit before tax 1,465,872 1,463,697 (2,175) -0.1%

Income tax 439,761 441,168 1,407 0.3% Due to increase in Taxable Income
Profit /(loss) for the period 1,026,111 1,022,528 (3,583) -0.3% -

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income 1,026,111 1,022,528 (3,583) -0.3% -

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 1,026,111 1,022,528 (3,583) -0.3% -

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment (217,579) (217,365) 214 -0.1% Due to decrease in profit

as per NRB Directive

Free profit/(loss) after regulatory 808,532 805,163 (3,370) -0.4%

adjustments
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COMPARISON OF PROJECTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PROSPECTUS
AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of FY 2021-2022

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS PER PROJECTED

AS PER AUDITED

VARIANCE

(NPR in '000)

REASONS

FINANCIAL FOR
STATEMENTS VARIANCE
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 58,335 3,244,142 3,185,807 5461% Due to Placements with original
maturity upto 3 months
Due from NRB 35,000 375,108 340,108 972% Due to funding requirement
Placements with BFls 1,885,000 6,514,665 4,629,665 246% Due to Placement of funds with BFls
remaining after loan disbursement
Loan and advances 29,951,976 15,539,062 (14,412,914) -48% Due to decrease in Loan disbursement
Investments Securities 772,700 - (772,700) -100% Due to Sale of Investments
Investment in subsidiaries and - - -
associates
Property & equipment 48,281 108,690 60,408 125% Due to addition in assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 5,038 6,043 1,005 20% Due to addition in assets
Other assets 21,408 74,114 52,706 246% Due to increase in other assets
Total Assets 32,777,738 25,861,823  (6,915,916) -21%
Capital and Liabilities
Paid up Capital 21,600,000 21,600,000 -
Reserves and surplus 2,276,052 1,733,460 (542,592) -24% Due to decrease in Profit
Deposits 3,000,000 438,018 (2,561,982) -85% Due to decrease in deposit mobilization
Borrowings - - -
Bond and Debenture 5,794,705 - (5,794,705) -100% Due to cancellation of proposed
Bond Issue
Other liabilities and provisions 106,981 2,090,345 1,983,364 1854% Due to increase in other liability &
Interbank Borrowing
Total Capital and Liabilities 32,777,738 25,861,824  (6,915,915) 21% -
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AS PER PROJECTEDJ AS PER AUDITED VARIANCE REASONS

FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

IN AMOUNT

FOR

VARIANCE

Interest income 3,113,228 1,928,826 (1,184,402) -38.0% Due to decrease in Loans & Advances
Interest expense 559,171 46,019 (513,152) -92% Due to decrease in Deposit
mobilization & cancellation of Bond Issue
Net interest income 2,554,057 1,882,807 (671,250) -26% -
Fee and commission income 98,796 9,682 (89,114) -90% Due to decrease in fee based
transactions
Fee and commission expense 28,974 51 (28,922) -100%
Net fee and commission income 69,822 9,631 (60,191) -86% -
Other operating income 17,329 - (17,329) -100% Due to decrease in other operating income
Total operaing income 2,641,208 1,892,439 (748,769) -28.3% -
Impairment charge/(reversal) for 100,000 134,050 34,050 34% Due to increase in LLP
loans and other losses
Net operating income 2,541,208 1,758,388 (782,820) -31% -
Personnel expenses 72,288 239,868 167,580 232% Due to increase in bonus provision
Other operating expenses 41,985 54,925 12,940 31% Due to increase in operating expenses
Operating profit 2,426,936 1,463,596 (963,340) -40%
Non operating income/expense - 100 100 100% Due to increase in other income
Profit before tax 2,426,936 1,463,696 (963,240) -40%
Income tax 730,508 441,168 (289,340) -40% Due to decrease in profit
Profit /(loss) for the period 1,696,428 1,022,528 (673,900) -40% -
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income 1,696,428 1,022,528 (673,900) -40% -
Distributable Profit
Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 1,696,428 1,022,528 (673,900) -40% -
Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per NRB Directive (356 250) (217,365) 138,885 -39% Due to decrease in Profit
Free profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments 1,340,178 805,163 (535,015) -40%
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KEY INDICATORS qe

PARTICULARS INDICATORS FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22
1. Net Profit/Gross Income Percent - 58.91% 62.18% 61.11% 52.74%
2. Earnings Per Share (as per NAS 26) NPR - 6.10 7.06 5.35 4.95
3. Market Value Per Share NPR - 100 100 492 240
4. Price Earning Ratio Ratio - 16.39 14.17 92.01 48.51
5. Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital Percent - - - - 8%
6. Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent - - - - 0.42%
7. Interest Income/Loans and Advances & Investment Percent - - 4.93% 6.48% 8.34%
8. Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses Percent - 61.76% 63.10% 59.83% 58.44%
9. Interest Expenses/Total Deposits and Borrowings Percent - 9.21% 9.21% 8.52% 7.38%
10. Exchange Gain/Total Income Percent - - - - -
11. Total Cost/Total Revenue Percent - 15.80% 11.19% 12.72% 24.50%
12. Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses Percent - 72.36% 4.82% 16.61% 67.80%
13. Staff Cost Per Employee NPR - 1,193,936 2,622,929 2,409,072 2,340,459
14. Net Profit Per Employee NPR - 19,684,420 29,211,903 28,876,220 30,985,684
15. Total Credit/Deposits (CCD) Percent - - 3.54% 9.63% 66.20%
16. Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets Percent - 0.50% 0.86% 0.61% 0.53%
17. Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets) -

Core Capital Percent - 421.84% 323.85% 305.26% 111.48%

Total Capital Fund Percent - 421.84% 323.97% 305.55% 112.22%
18. Liquidity (CRR) Percent - 2.90% 3.65% 623.25% 85.64%
19. Net Profit / Total Loan Multiple - - - - -
20. Gross Non-Performing Credit/Total Credit Ratio - - - - -
21. Net Non-Performing Credit/Total Credit Ratio - - - - -
22. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent - - - - -
28. Return on Total Assets Percent - 5.09% 6.06% 4.36% 4.07%
24. Return on Equity Percent - 5.23% 6.21% 4.65% 4.47%
25. Book Net Worth NPR - 106.57 113.62 112.01 108.03
26. Number of Shares No.(in '000) - 20,000,000 120,000,000 200,000,000 216,000,000

27. Number of Staff No. - 34 29 29 33
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